BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of LENDINGKART FINANCE LIMITED
Report on the Avdit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompenying financial statements of Lendingkart Finance Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changs in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “financial stalements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accownting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2022, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the vear ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institete of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requiremants and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report.
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an Asscis

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide
for impairment of its loan assets (financial
instruments) using the Excepted Credit Losses
(ECL) approach. ECL involves an estimation of
probability-weighted loss on  financials
instruments  over  their  life, considering
reasonable and supporting information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions which could impact
the credit quality of the Company's loans and
advances,

In the process, a significant degree of
,}ﬂrudg:m:m has been applied by the management

a) unbiased, probability weighted outcome
under Various scenarios;

b) time value of money;

¢) impact arising from forward looking

macro-economic factors and;

availability of reasonable and supportable

information without undue costs.

d)

Applying these principle involves significant
estimation in various aspects, such as:

a) grouping of borrowers based on
homegeneity by using  appropriate
statistical technigues;

b) staging of loans and estimation of
behaviroeal life;

c) determining  macro-economic  factors
impacting credit quality of receivables;

d) estimation of losses for loan products with
no/minimal historical defaults.

In view of the high degree of management's
Judgement involved in estimation of ECL, it is
a key andit maiter,

* We read and assessed the Company's
accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets and their compliance
with Ind AS 109 and the governance
framework approved by the board of
directors pursuant to Reserve Bank of
India (“RBI") guidelines issued on
March 13, 2020.

* Tested the assumptions used by the
Company for staging of loan portfolio
into various categories and default
buckets for determining the Probability
of Default (PD) and Loss Given Default
(LGD) rates.

* Assessed the criteria for staging of
loans based on their past-due status,
Tested samples of performing (Stage 1)
loans to assess whether any loss
indicators were present requiring them
to be classified under stage 2 or 3 as per
Ind AS 109,

* Performed  inquiries  with  the
Company’s management o assess the
i t of COVID-19 on the business
activities of the Company.

* Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of ECL provision
performed by the Company.

*  Ascecced the disclosures included in the
Ind AS financial statements in respect
of expected credit losses with the
requirements of Ind AS 107 and 109,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's
Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Sharcholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial slatements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements of our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially

If, based on the work we ha.vcp-!fﬁ:mrrd,wemunludelhalllnﬂisanmtﬁiﬂl misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statemenis

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements tha give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities:
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to ceass
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company”s financial reporting process.
Aunditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about wheiher the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 3 material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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. Cmmﬂmﬂmappmpﬁmwﬁfmmgmmrs use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as & going concem, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, fiture events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, inclueding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statemnents represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safepuards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The audit of the figures for the year ended March 31, 2021, was conducted by the predecessor auditors who
had expressed an unmodified opinion in their report dated May 12, 2021.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A® a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.
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€)

d)

&)

g)

h)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

In gur opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal finaneial controls ever financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, 88 amended;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
there is no remuneration paid by the Company to iis directors during the year under the provision of
section 197(16) of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended In our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

L The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position
&5 at March 31, 2022,

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses,

ilil.  There were no amounts which were required 1o be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2022.

.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing of otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
{which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:
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Based on the audit procedures that have tmnmns]demdremmhlumdappmprimhﬂm
circumstances, nﬂllﬂﬂﬂ.hﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂiﬂﬂﬂlﬂuﬁu“ﬂhﬂﬂﬂﬂ&:ﬂmtﬂhﬂﬁnﬂ that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (if) of Rule 11(c), as provided under (2) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

¥.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year,

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.101048W

st

Janak Mehia
Partner
Membership No. 116976

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 11, 2022
ICAI UDIN : 221 16976AIUWVE2147
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors®
(Referred 10 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements’ section of our repodt to the
members of Lendingkart Finance Limited of even date)

i In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant
details of right-of-use assets,

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
nmsety,

(b) The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the
management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our
opinion, provides for physical verification of all the property, plant and equipment
at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given 1o us,
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have ownership
of any immovable property.

{d) The Company has not revalued any of jts Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the Information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have
been initiated, or were pending, during the year against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 19838 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder,

ii (a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause
3ii}a) of the Order is not applicable.

{b) During the year, the Company had existing sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from various banks on the basis of
security of its current assets, The quarterly statements filed by the Company with
such banks were in agreement with unaudited books of account of the Company as
at the respective quariers ended June 30, 2021, September 30, 2021, December 31,
2021 and March 31, 2022,

iii The Company has granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, in
respect of which:
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(a) The Company’s principal business is to give loans therefore reporting under Clause
3(iiiMa) of the Order is not applicable,
{b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

terms and conditions of the grant of loans, during the year are, prima facie, mot
prejudicial to the Company's interess.

{€) In respect of the loans/advances in the nature of loan, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company. Considering
that the Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company engaged in the business of
granting loans, the entity-wise details of the amount, due date for payment and
extent of delay (that has been sugpested in the Guidance Note on CARQ 2020
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for reporting under ihis
clause) have not been reported since it is not practicable to furnish such details
owing to the voluminous nature of the data generated in the normal course of
Company's business, Further except for the instances where there are delays or
defaults in repayment of principal andfor interest and in respect of which the
Company has recognised necessary provisions in accordance with the principles of
Ind AS and the guidelines issued by the RBI for Income Recognition and Assel
Classification (which has been disclosed by the Company in Note 61.0. to the
financial statements), the partics are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated,
and are also regular in payment of interest, as applicable, ;

{d} In respect of loans/advances in nature of loans, the total amount overdue for more
than 90 days as at March 31, 2022 js Rs 1,836.49 Lakhs In such instances, in our
opinion, based on information and explanation provided to us, reasonable steps
have been taken by the Company for the recovery of the principal amounts and the
interest thereon. Refer Note 55.C. in the financial statements for details of number
of cases and the amount of principal and interest overdue as at March 31, 2022,

(e} The Company's principal business is to give Loans therefore reporting under
Clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.
(T} The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either

repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)X1) is not applicable.

Further, the Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

iv In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, there
are no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and
hence not commented upon,

v According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public in accordance with the provisions of section
73 0 76 or any relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder,

Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order s not applicable.

vi The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business
activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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vii In Respect of Statutory Dues:

() Anwﬂnghﬂmimhnmﬂplmmgimmusmﬂnﬂmhﬂsjs of our
examination of the records, the Company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, income tax and other
material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. According
to the information and explanations Eiven to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
mmﬂmmmelmmmﬂmlcumumwmh:rMI statutory dues
Were in arrears ag at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b} According to information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, excize duty and cess
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which was not recorded in the books
of account. Accordingly, paragraph 3{viii) of the Order is not applicable.

ix {a) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given
by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans to banks or financial institutions. There were no outstanding
loans from government during the year,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilfil
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government of any government

authority.

(€) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for
the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations Biven to us, and the procedures

performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on shon-term basis have been used for

long-term purposes by the Company.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix}e) of the Order is
not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)1) of the Order is
not applicable.

X (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
pruudlmptrfnnnadb}'uaﬂm(?nmpmydidmtﬂis:my money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer {including debt instruments) during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable,




BATLIBOI & PUROHIT

Chartered Accountants

xi

xii

xiii

Xiv

Ky

xvi

(b)

(a)

(b)

{e)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentuses
(fully, partly or optionally) during the year, Accordingly, paragraph 3(x}b) of the
Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, certain borrowers had
availed loans from the Company based on submission of forged bank statements.
The fraud was identified by the Company and the amount involved was Rs, 371.46
lakhs. The amount has been fully provided for in the books of account,

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion and
based on the audit procedures performed by us, no report under sub-section (12)of
section 143 of the Companies Act in Form ADT-4 &5 prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was filed with the Central
Government during the vear or up to the date of the Report.

As represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints were
received by the Company during the year,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a ‘*nidhi’ company and it has not accepted any deposits.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii)(a), paragraph 3(xii)(b) and paragraph 3(xii)c) of the
Oirder is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the agdit
procedures performed by us, the Company is in compliznce with sections 177 and
188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the
related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business,

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued upto the date
of this Report, for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanalions given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not entered Into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly,
provisions of section 192 of the Act and paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not

applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
registered, as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934,

According to the information and explanations given 10 us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not conducted any Mon-Banking
Financial activities during the year without a valid certificate of registration (CoR)
from the RBL. Further as represented by the Management, the Company has not
engaged in Housing Finance Activities,

Continuation Sheet
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xviii

Hix

()

(d)

{a)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xviKe) of the Order
is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group (as defined in
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Direction 2016) does not have any
Core Investment Companies {CICs).

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has incurred cash losses of Rs5.35,245.89
lakhs in the current financial vear. The Company had not incurred cash losses in

the preceding year,

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year pursuant to RBI
Guidelines for Appeintment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)Statutory
Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs
(including HFCs) dated April 27, 2021. According to the information and
explanations given to us, there were no issues, objections or concerns raised by the
outgoing auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our arention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
nfhﬂmslmasmdmﬂmymmuewiﬂ:mapeﬁndufmymﬁ-nmﬂm
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company, We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any puarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on
other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII
to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of
Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xxia) of the
Order is not applicable for the year,

Continuation Sheet
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(b} In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent CSR amount
as at the end of the financial year, to a Special Account within a period of 30 days
from the end of the said financial year in compliance with the provision of section
135(6) of the Act.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Firm Reg. No. 101048W

At

Partner
Membership No. 116976

Place: Mumbai
Date:; May 11, 2022
ICAI UDIN: 221 16976 AIUWYE2 147
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Annexure - B to the Auditors® Report

{referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
report to the members of the Company of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of Lendingkart Finance
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with owr audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and malntaining Internal Financial Controls
based on the Internal Centrol over Financial Reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of Internal Control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {("ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Anditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an Audit of Internal Financial Controls, both applicable to an Audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance MNote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain Reasonable Assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respecis.

Crur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal
Financial Controls system over Financial Reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting included obtaining an understanding of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of Internal Control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the Auditor's Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s Internal Financial Controls system over Financial Reporting.

Cantinuation Sheet
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of Financial Reporting and the preparation of Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepled Accounting Principles. A
company’s Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due io
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issusd by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For BATLIBOI & PURDHIT
Charterad Accountants
ICAl Firm Reg, No. 101048W

N

Janak Mehta
Partner
Membership Mo. | 16976

Place: Mumbai
Doate: May 11, 2022
ICATUDIM : 221 169T6AIUWYPZ 147
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REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF MASTER DIRECTION - NON-BANKING
FINANCIAL COMPANIES AUDITOR'S REPORT (RESERVE BANK) DIRECTIONS, 2016
ISSUED BY THE RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

The Board of Directors
Lendingkart Finance Limited
A=303/304, Citi Point
Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri East
hMMumbai - 400059

1. This report for Lendingkart Finance Limited (the ‘Company’) is issued in accordance with the
requirements of the Master Direction — Mon-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (*the Auditor’s Report Directions') issued by the Reserve Bank
of India (“the RBI").

2. We have audited the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant sccounting policies and other
explanatory information and have issued our audt opinion vide our report dated May 11, 2022.

3. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”) with respect to the preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (*Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estfimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

4, The management of the Company is alse responsible for compliance with the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (*the RBI Act’), Master Direction - Mon-Banking Financial Company —
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Compary and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 (‘the NBFC Directions’), and other circulars and directions issued by the
RBI thereunder and for providing all the required information to the RBL

5.  Based on our audit of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 and based on the
information and explanations and representations given to us, we report hereunder on the maters
gpecified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Auditor's Report Directions:

a. The Company is engaged in the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution (not accepting
or holding public deposits) as defined in section 45-Ka) of the RBI Act, which reguires it to
held a Certificate of Registration (*CoR’) under section 45-1A of the RBI Act, The Company
has obtained CoR No, B-13.02085 dated January 9, 2017 issued by the Mumbai Regional
Office of the RBI (Original CoR No. B-13.02085 dated January 14, 2015).
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b. The Company is entitled to continue to hold such CoR in terms of its principal business criteria
{financial asset/income pattern) as on March 31, 2022 and for the year then ended.

¢. The Company has complied with the required net owned fund requirements as laid down in
the NBFC Directions as on March 31, 2022,

d. The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 12, 2021 has passed a
resolution for non-acceptance of any public depesits for the financial year April 1, 2021 to
March 31, 2022,

e. The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year ended March 31, 2022,

f. The Company has complied with the predential norms relating to inceme recognition,
accounting standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as
applicable to it in terms of the RBI notification RBL2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).
CC.PD.No. 109/22.10.106/2019-20 on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards dated
March 13, 2020. .

g The capital risk adequacy ratio (“CRAR™) as disclosed in Mote 61.A. of the financial
statements, has been correctly computed by the Company based on the audited financial
statements and is in compliance with minimum CRAR prescribed in the NBFC Directions,

h. The Company has furnished to the RBI, a provisional Annual Statement of Capital Funds, risk
assets/exposures and risk assets ratio (DNBS03) for the year ended March 31, 2022 within the
stipulated period.

i, The Company is not a Non-Banking Financial Company-Micro Finance Institution (*NBFC=
MFT'") as specified under paragraph 3(xix) of the NBFC Directions.

6. 'We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the
date of our audit opinion ie. audit report dated May 11, 2022,

7. This report is issued solely for reporting on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Auditor's Report Directions and is not intended to be used or distributed for any other purpose.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.101048W

i)

Janak Mehia -
Pariner
Membership No. 116976

Place: Mumbai
Drate: June 9, 2022
ICAI UDIN: 22116976AKOZFR2840



Lendingkart Finance Limited
Balanoe Sheet as at 31 March 2022

} TP B i P T T ¥
Ba 5 P B - -
- Motes | Asat 3l March Z052 | Asati3l

Financisl assets
Cazh and cash eguivalents & 2115806 28, TEE 04
Bank balances ather than Cash and Cash equivalents 7 13,957.32 14,096,830
Loans B 1,91.552.90 1,93, B69.75
Ortheer financial assets o 24,013.63 766762
JT21.91 2 A4.419.71
Mon-financial assets &30,
Current tax assets (Met) 10 1,660.32 24,55
Daferred tas asset [Met) 11 B575.16 398668
Proparty, plant and eguipment 12 135.40 160,55
Intangible assets 13 76,54 67.12
Intangible ssets under developmant 14 = 14541
Right-of-use assets 12 1,947 83 2,339.07
Other non-financial assets 15 45151 455 27
1Z,846.76 TATEES
[FORS paygs | 26356867 (  2,51,598.36
Linbifities and Equity
LiabilEties
Financial liabilities
[Debt Securities 16 1,70,026.19 BH,ETR.55
Borrowings {Other than debt securities) ir 57.114.59 71,964 .66
Subordinated Debt 18 1.529.50 2.529.12
Other financial liabilities 19 11,619.58 11,112.93 |
2.01,289.86 1,74,265.26
Mon Financial liabilitles
Cusrrent tax liabilities [net] 0 . 1,189.18
Frovisions X 345.18 38352
Other non-financial llabilities 12 1,891.79 1.579.03
2,236.97 3,151.73
Equity
Equity share capital 23 4,418.79 441879
Other eguity 24 55,623.05 E9.742.58
£0,041,84 74,161.37 |
Tital liabilities and equity 2,63,568.67 2,51,588.36
Summary of significent accounting policies a

For Batlibod & Purchit
Chartered Agcountants
Firm Registration No. 101048\W

g

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lendingicart

Janak Mehta [;,’{; e

Partner Chairman and Managing Director

Membership No. 116976 DM MNo. 01183114

Place: Mumbal {%@// e i,

Date: 11 May 2022 .f%' ; ‘Eﬁ_j:_":-——
Sudeep Bhatia Urnsish Manrand
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretany
Membership Mo, 098112 Membership Mo, A40895
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 11 May 2022



Lendingiart Finance Limited
Statement of Profit & Loas for the year ended 31 March 2002

Revenue from operaticns
Interest Income it 51, 18447 50,082.39
Gain{Lass] on assignment of loans 26 141712 BT
Tatal Revenes from operations 62,601.59 50, 347.13
Othagr Ingome b 1.251.78 69358
Tatal intame 63, 854.37 £1,080.71
Expénses
Finarice Costs 28 23.750.51 30,143.54
Fees and commiission expenses 25 5918 44 1,23%.71
Impairment of fnancial instruments 30
imp@isment on otfver than restroctioned portfolo 13,980.73 11,890.48
Impaisment oa restricfured portfalio 27 40087 4147130 S R75.04 17 Fig 82
Employee Benefil expenses 31 441114 3.638.58
Depreciation and amanisation expansay 32 SRGST 24,00
Other Expensos EE] 6,133.22 4,652.56
Total Experses Bi,152.08 48,224.91
Prodfiny boss) before Tan {18,397.71) 181580
Tax Expense
- Current tax 34 - 3128407
- Tax of earlier years 34 342,98 -
- Deferred tax {income) f expense 34 14.596.70) (2,144.21)
Total Tan Expenses {4,253.74) 581,36
1F'I'GHI.|’H.m]erIIu (14,143.57) 1,831.54
Crther comprebensive iIncome
(=) lema that will not be reclazified to profit or lais
Rerseaienement gain / |losses) on defined benefit plans 32.66 &4, 14
Tax impacy o shove {8.21) {15.19)
DOiher camprehengivie intame, net of tax 24.44 48.05
Total Comprehensive eame {14,118.53) 1.875.99
Earning per equity share: [In absolute €] E ]
Basic [Face walue % 10) (32.01) 4.1%
Diuted [Face valee % 10] [32.01) 4.15

Summary of significant accounting poliches

For Batlibod B Purghit
Chamered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 101 06E8W

3

Faor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lendingkart Finante




Lendingkart Finance Limited

Operating activities
Profit/{loss) before tax
Adjusted for:
Impact of EIR accounting of financial assats
impact of EIR acopunting of financial BabiBties
Ugpfrant gain an direct assignment
Guarantes fees
Interest on financial lease liability
Provision for gratuity
Provizsion for leave benefit
Imgalrment of loans
Impairment of ather financial assets
Bad dobt written affs
Discoamnt on Cormmercial Paper
Depreciation and amortisation
Interest on bank deposits
Interest on borrowings and debt securities
PPE & Intangible assets under development written off

Actuarial gain /| loss
[Cash from operations |

Changes in working capltal:

- [Inerease] [ decreass in loans

- [Inereate) f decrease in other financlal Assets

- (Increase) f decrease in other non financial Assets

- Imcrease [ (decrease) in ather financial liabilities
decrease) in other non financial labilities

LiRifle CdpMial LRANgeS

Investing activithes:
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Movement in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Financing sctivities:
Share ssue expenses
Froceeds from debt securities
Repaymeant of debt securities
Proceeds from other than debt seeurities
Repayment of other than debt securities
Proceeds from bisue of commercial paper
Change in Cash Credit § Overdraft
Repayment af lease liabilities
Fmrudmnmﬁmnu frodn securitisation Hability

h’-li”l'l l:lli1ur 1. prehensive income

MMWM“EM!IMMW Eﬁmmmm

(18,337.71)

{2,264.91)
£1.75
11,417.12)
1331.12
33084
51.74
{51'.::]'
6,591.63)
310.456
47,752.37
1.495
569.57
E!mﬁal
23 405,95
150,29

28, 500.00
(31.009.15)
34,886.84
(49,658, 36)
1,611.90

g2.57
(531.77]
3L551 53

68401
i918.11)|
17,730.24
302

[5.88]
40,750.00
{15,272.80)
37,510.00
(51.487.61)

322872
[385.74)




Lendingkart Finance Limited
Cash flow statement far the ended 31 March 2022 in lokhs uniess otherwise

B
-

et | T T e — TP r— -

{ [Cecrease)inc

Cofmpomnents of cash and cash equivalents

Cath in hand

Balances with banks

= With banks in current accounts

» In deposit sccounts with original maturity of less than 3 months
Coshgndcashequivadents — ~ 7 21,1 U
Eahwe:uh fiew staternent has been prepared under the Indirect method as prescribed in Ind AS - 7 on Statement of cath-

5

Summary of significant aceounting policies 3

For Batliboi & Purohit
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Firm Registration No. 101048W Limited

'?“"" -
‘::&_,/\‘\ / . ] W\. __'Z... ; o
Partner Chairman and Managing Director 31 (8 |-
Memberthip No. 116976 DN Mo, 01189114 /j( /
Place: Murmbai

it =Gl _— AN owve”

P
Sudeap Bhatia Urmesh Mavan

Chief Financial Officer Compay Secretany
Membership Mo, 098112  Membership No. A40893

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 11 May 2022



Statement of changes in equity for the 2022 (€ in fakhs uless otherwise stated)

Cha % im
Restated balance at 01 Apsil 2020

| Tortal eomprehsensie Income

Oaher comprobenshee incoene [net of tax)
Transferred o Saiuiory Reserve u's section 454C
af Al Act, 1934

. (376.00) IT6.00 .
Share issue expense [5.83) - : -

at 31 March 2021 67,246.84 730.88 1,657.14 47.72 u,rq%
Changes in #0cou licy/pricr period errars . - -

Restated balance ot the beginning of the year £7,246.84 790.58 1,657.14 47.72 69,742.58
Total comprehensive income - (14,119.53) - - {14,119.53)
Dither pomprehensive incoma [net ol 1) - - 24.44 -
Balance at 31 March 2022 67,246.84 | o3 1,657.14 7116 55 623.08 |

Sumeary of significant accounting policies 3

For Batliboi & Purahat For and on behall of the Board of Directors of Lendingkart Finance Limited
Chariered Aecountants

Firm Registration Mo, 1001048W "J.-’n

.
! T
AL W= JETRN

. / ."'l..-'.
rdhan Lumla T4 !
DIN No. 01189114 .

Chiel Finsncial Gificosr Comparry Secretary
niembership No. 092112 Memberihip Mo Ad085S




Lendingkart Finance Limited
Motes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2027
f! it Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

L. Corporate Infarmation

Lendingkart Finance Limited (“the Company®) is 2 public limited company domiciled in India, The Company Is a “Non-
Banking Financial Company” as defined under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of Indla ["REI") Act, 1934 and engaged
in the business. of providing warking capital loan to the Smafl and medium sized enterprises and others. The Company is
non deposit taking non-banking financial company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of India [RB1) with effect from
15 April 2014, with Registration Mo. B-13.02085 (ssued in lleu of CoR Mo, B-09.00353). RBI, vide the circular —
"Harmonisation of different categories of NBFCs' Issued an 22 February 2019, with a view to provide NBFCs with greater
operational fiexibility and harmonisation of different categories of NBFCs inte fewer categories based on the principle of
regulation by activity, mesged the three categories of NBFCs viz, Asset Finance Companies [AFC), Loan Companies (LCs)
and Investment Companies (ICs) inte a new category called NBFC = Investment and Credit Company [NBFC-ICC).
Accordingly, the Company has been reclassified as NBFC Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-ICC).

The Comparny has its registered office at A-303,/304, Citl Point, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East], Mumbal, India. As at
31 March 2022, Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited ["Holding Company™} owned 100% of the Compary’'s equity
share capital and has the ability to control Its operating and financial poliches.

Z. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards [Ind AS) a3 per the
Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act and the Master Direction — Non-Banking
Financial Company — Systemically important Non-Depasit taking Company and Deposit taking Company [Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 ("the NBFC Master Directions) issued by RBI, The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The Company uses accrual basis of accounting except in case of significant uncertainties,

2.1 Presentatben of financial statements
The Company presents its Balance Sheet in order of lhquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settiement within 12
months after the reporting date {current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date {non—current) i
presented in Note 55,

Financial assets and financlal liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and
reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
without being contingent om a future event.

2.2 Use of estimaves and judgmaents
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates,
assumptions and exercise judgments in applying the accounting policies that affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of
iporme and expanses during the year,

The Management believes that these estimates are prudent and reasonable and are based upon the Management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions. Actual results could differ from these estimates and differences
between actual results and estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are known or materialized.
Revisigns 1o accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

3. Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.,

(i} Rewenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured.
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Maotes forming part of financial statements for the yesr ended 31 March 2022
(¥ in Lokhs unless otherwise stoted)

4. Interest income

([} The Company calculates interest income by using the effective interest rate (EIR]) method to gross carrying
amount of financial asset ather than credit impalred assets.

(i} When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and i, therefore, regarded as “Stage 3, the company
caltulates interest [ncome by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial
asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the company reverts to calculating
interest income on a gross basis

(i} Loan processing feefdocument feesfstamp fees which are an imtegral part of financiaks assets are
recognized through effective interest rate ower the term of the loan, For the agreements foreclosed or
transferred through assignment, the unamartized portion of the fee Is recognized as income to the
Statement of profit and loss at the time of such foreclosure/transfer through the assignmeant.

(iv) Additional charges such as penal, dishonour, foreclosure charges, delayed payment charges etc. are
recognized on realization basis.,

The effective iIntersest rate maothod

Interest income expense s recorded using the effective interast rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments
measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial Instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter peried, to the net carrying amount of the
finandcial instrument.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset/ Rability] is calculated by taking inte sccount any discount
or premium on acquisition, commission, fees and costs incremental and directly attributable to the specificlending
afrangement,

The Company recognises interest income/ expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a
constant rate of return over the expected life of the financial asset/ liability. The future cash flows are estimated
taking Into account all the contractual terms of the asset/ Hability. i expectations regarding the cash flows on the
financial asset/ lfability are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or
negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset/ llability in the balance sheet. The adjustrent is
subsequently amortised through Interest income/ expense in the statement of prafit and loss.

b. Met gain on fale value changes
The realised gain from financial instrurnents at FYTPL represents the difference between the carrying amount af
a financial instrument at the beginning of the reporting period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the
current reporting period, and its settlement price.

The unrealised gain represents the difference between the carrying amount of & financisl instrument at the
beginning of the period, or the transaction price If it was purchased in the current reporting period, and its carrying
amaunt a1 the end of the reporting period.

€. Rendering of services
The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as 58t out in knd AS
115 to determine when te recognize revenue and at what amount.

Revenue s measured based on the condideration specified In the contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue from contracts with custemers is recognized when sarvices are
provided and it is highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue is not expected to coour.

if the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable amount, an entity estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitl for rendering the promised sérwicds to 4 customer. An
fa




Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes farming part of financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2022

(% in Lakhs unless otherwise stalted)

amount of consideration can vary because of discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions, incenthves,
performance bonuses, or other similar items. The promised consideration can alsa vary if an entitiement to the
consideration is contingent on the occurmence or non-occurrence of a future event,

(i} Recognition of axpenditures

b.

Finance costs
Borrowing costs on financial liabilities are recognised using the EIR.

Fees and commission expenies

Fees and commission expenses which are not directly linked to the sourcing of financial assets/ liabilities, such as
commission/fincentive incurred on value added services and products distribution, recovery charges and fees
payable for management of portfolio ete., are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis.

Tanes
Expensed are recognized net of the Goods and Services Tax/Service Tax, except where credit for the input tax is
figt statutorily parmitted.,

(Hi) Financial Instruments

A finandial instrument Is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ene entity and a financial
lability er equity instrurment of another entity.

a.

Date of recognition

Financlal assets and habilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date, Le., the date that the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account. The company recognises debt
securities and borrowings when funds are received by the company.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instrurnents at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business
madel for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value, except in the
case of financial essets and financial Habilities recorded at FYTPL, trensaction costs are added ta, or subtracted
from, this amount. When the falr value of financial instruments at initial recognition differs from the transaction
price, the company accounts for the Day one profit or boss, as described below.

Day one profit or loss

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the falr value at erigination and the fair value is based
on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the company recopnises the
difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes.

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The company classifies all of its financial instruments based on the business model for managing the assets and
the assets contractual terms, measured at either:

»  pmortised cost

# fair value through other comprebensive income [FVOCH

*  fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

(v} Fnancial assets and Habllitles

Bank balances, Loans, Trade recelvables and financial assets at amortised cost
The company measures Bank balances, Loans and other financial assets at amortised cost if bath af the following
conditions are met:
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totes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(% in Lokhs unless atherwise stated)

¥ The financial asset is held within a business medel with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows,

® The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount cutstanding.

The details of these conditions ane outlined belaw,

F Buginess model attessmant

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial
assets to achieve its business objective. The Company's business model Is not assessed on an instrument by
Instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios.

If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that |s different fram the Company's original expectations,
the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but
incorporates such information when assessing newly originated financial assets going forward. The business model
of the Company for assets subsequently measured at amortised cost category is to hold and collect contractual
cath flows.

# The SPP test
As a second step of its classification process the company assesses the contractual terms of financial to identify
wiether théy maet the SPPI test

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may
change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the
premiumydiscount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time
value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the company applies judgement and considers
relevant factors such as the currency in which the financlal asset is denominated, and the period for which the
interest rate s ot

b. Debt securities and other borrowed funds
After initial measurement, debt issued and other barrowed funds are subsequently measured st amortised cost.
Amartised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an
integral part of the EIR.

€. Financial assets and financial Rabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets and financial liabilitles in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been
tither designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair
walue under Ind AS 109, Management only designates an instrement at FVTPL upodn initial recognition when ong
of the foliowing criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-Instrument basis:

# The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatrment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gaing or losses on them on a different basis: Or

# The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed, and their performance evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy; Or

# The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear with little or no analysis whan a similar
instrument i first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) i prohibited

d. Financial assets at FVOCI
The Compary classifies its financial assets as FVOCI, anly if both of the following eriteria are met:

# The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and sefling the

financial assets; and

.'ll 5
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# Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal
and Interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding

2. Financial guarantees and undrawn loan commitments
Financial guarantess are initially recognised in the financial statements [within Provisions] at fair value, being the
premium/deemed premium recelved. Subsequent to initial recognition, the company's liability under each
Buarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less curmulative amortisation recognised in
the staterment of profit and loss,

= The premium/deemed premium is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a stralght line basis aver
the life of the guarantes.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the Compary
is required to provide a loan with pre-dpecified terms to the custamer, Undrawn loan commitments are in the
scope of the ECL requirements.

The nominal contractual value of undrawn loan eemmitments, where the loan agreed to be provided is on market
terms, ane not recorded in the balance sheet,

{v] Redassification of financlal assets and liabilities

The company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a busineds line. Financial
liabilities are never reclassified.

[vi} Derecognition of financlal assets and liabilities
a. Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

A financial asset [or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) i
derecognised when the rights to recelve cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The company also
derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financlal asset and the transfer gualifies for

dereoognition,

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if elther:

# The company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset: Or

¥ The company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset

On derecognition of a financial aaset in its entirety, the difference between:

= the earrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and

F the consideration received (Including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in
priofit or loss.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the company retains the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows of a financlal asset {the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to
one or more entities (the "eventual recipients'), when all of the following three conditions are met;

# The company has no cbligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equlvalent
amaounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount
lent pdus accrued interedt at market rates

# The company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients. The
company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material delay. In
addition, the company i not entitled to relnvest sweh cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash
equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and the date of required
remittance 1o the eventual reciplents.
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The company considers contral te be transferred If and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the
a5k in its entirety 19 an wnrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilatesally and without imposing
additianal restrictions on the transfer,

When the company has neither transferred nor retained substantiaily all the risks and rewards and has retained
contrel of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the company's continuing
involvemaent, in which case, the company alio recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated [iability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the comparny has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset s measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration the company could be
required to pay.

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option (or both) an the transferred asset, the
continuing invalvement is measured at the value the company would be required to pay upon repurchase. In the
case of a written put option on an asset that is measured at falr value, the extent of the entity's continuing
Imvohvernent is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

b. Financial labilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financial Kability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing Rability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

[vil] impairment of finandal assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets at amortized cost along with related undrawn
commitments and loans sanctioned but not disbursed [collectively known as exposure at default).

& Overview of the ECL principles
The company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not held at
FVTPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as
‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to Impalrment under Ind AS 109,

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected
eredit loss or LTECL), unbess there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case,
the allowance |5 based on the 12 months’ expected credit boss (12mECL),

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the regorting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calcuiated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the nature
of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether
a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in
the risk of default occurring over the remaining |ife of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described
below:

' b
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The Company classifies its financial assets in three stages having the following characteristics:

# Stage 1: unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on which a 12-manth
allowance for ECL is recognised. Stage 1 leans alio include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and the
loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

» Stage Z: a significant Increase In credit risk since initial recognition on which a lifetime ECL is recognised. Stage
2 loans alse include facilities, where the credit risk has improved, and the loan has been reclassified from Stage
3.

 Stage 3: objective evidence of impairment and are therefore considered to be in default or otherwise credit
impaired on which a lifetime ECL is recognised.

For financlal assets for which the company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire
outstanding amount, or a propoartion thereof, the gross earrying amount of the financial asset is reduced, This is
considered a (partiad) derecognition of the financial assat.,

b. The caleulation of ECLs

The company calculates ECLs to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIRL
A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL caleubations are outfined below and the key elements are, as follows;

¥ Probability of Default (PD)
The Probability of Default = an estimate of the likelihood of default aver a given time horizon, A default may
only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the fadlity has not been previously derecognised and
is still in the portfolio.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

The Exposure at Default is 2n estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking Into account expected
changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether
scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns an committed facilities, and accrued interest from
missed payments,

1

» Loss given Default (LGD)
The Loss Given Default Is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to
receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

When estimating the ECLs, the company considers three scenarios (a base case, an upside, 2 downside). Each of
these i associated with different PDs, EADS and LGDs, When relevant, the assessment of multiple scenarios also
incorporates how defavlted loans are expected to be recovered, including the probability that the leans will eure
and the value of collateral or the amount that might be received for selling the asset,

The maximum period for which the oredit losses are determined is the contractual life of a financial instrument
uniess the company has the legal right to call it earfier,

Impairment losses and refeases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification losses or gains that
are accounted for as an adjustrment of the finandlal asset’s gross carrying vabue,

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

= Stage-1:
The 12mECL is caleulated as the portion of LTECLs that répresent the ECLS that result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The company calculates
the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months foliowing the reparting
date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the
expected LGD. This caloulation is made
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* Stage-2:
When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the company records an allowance
for the LTECLs. The mechanies are similar to those explained above, including the use of multiple scenarios, but
POz and LGD4 are estimated over the Hfetime of the instrument,

¥ Stage-3:
For loans considered credit-impaired, the company recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for these
loans, The miethod = simillar to that for Stage 7 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

¥ Loan commitments:
When estimating LYECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the company estimates the expected portion of the
loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life, The ECL is then based on the present value of
the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down, based on a probability-weighting of the three
seenarios. The expected cash shortfalis are discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR on the loan,

¥ Financial guarantes contracts:
The company”s liability under each guarantes is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised in tha staterment of profit and [oss, and the ECL pravision. For this purpose,
the company estimates ECLs based on the present value of the expected payments to reimburse the holder for
& credit loss that it inows. The shortfalls are discounted by the risk-adjusted Interest rate relevant to the
exposure. The caleulation is made wsing a probability-weighting of the four scenarios. The ECLs redated to
financial guarantes contracts are recognised within Pravisions,

c. Contract assets

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance an contract assets, The
application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes In credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes Impairment loss allowance based on lfetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition. The company uses a provision matriy to determine impairment loss allowance on partiolio of its
assets. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expacted life of the assets
and is adjusted for forsard-looking estimates, At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated for changes in the forward-looking estimates.

{vili) Sowereign Credit Guarantee Schemes

Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE) has been set up jointly by Ministry of MSME,
Government of India and 51081 to catalyse flow of institutional credit to Micre B Small Enterprises (MSEs),

Credit Guarantee Fund for Micro Units (CGFMU) is the Credit Guarantee Trust under the management of Mational
Credit Guarantee Trustee Company Limited [NCSTC), established by the Department of Financial Services, Ministry of
Finance,

CETMEE and CGFMU have been Instrumental in providing guarantes cover on credit extended by efigible Member
Lending Institutions [MLUIs] to MSEs. The Company Is a ML in these schemes and has obtained sovereign guarantese
cover on its portfolio. Accordingly, the company has incorporated the benefit of this soverelgn guarantee cover In
caleylation of impairment of loan assets.

(] ‘Wite-offs

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. If the amouwnt to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the
difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount,
Hewever, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities In order to comply with
the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on
financiad instrurment on statement of profit and boss.
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[¥] Determination of falr value

The campany measures financial indtruments, such as, derivatives at falr value at each balance sheer date, Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Rability n an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement (s based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place elther:

¥ In the principal market for the asset or Nability, or
¥ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the comparny.

The fair value of an asset or a liakility s measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act In their economic best interest,

A fair valve measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account 2 market participant’s ability to generate
econamic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The company wses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circurmstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable Inputs and minimising the use of
unobserable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financlal instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of
wiluation technigues, as summarised below:

= Level-1 financial instruments
Those where the Inputs wsed in the valuation are unadjusted queted prices from active markets for identical
assets or labilities that the comparny has access to at the measurement date. The company considers markets
a4 active only if there are sufficlent trading activities with regards to the volume and Bguidity of the identical
assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes avallable on the balance sheet
date,

= Level-2 financlial instruments

Those where the inputs that are vsed for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly
observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s [ife. Such inputs include quoted
prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, guoted prices for identical Instruments In Inactive
markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied
volatilities, and eredit spreads, In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the
asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, If such
adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which are sigaificant to the entire measurement, the company
will elassify the Instruments as Level 3,

# Lewel-3 financial instruments
Thote that inchude one or mare unobsenvable input that s significant to the mezsurement as whaole.

Far assets and liabilities that are recognised In the finaneial staterments on a recurring basis, the company determines
whether transfers have occurred betwean levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measuremant as a whola) at the end of each reporting period.
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(xl) Foreign Currency transiation

a. Functional and presentational currency
The company financial statements are presented in indian Rupees (%) which is also the functional currency of the
COMp &y,

b. Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded In the functional currency at the spot rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction,

Monetary assets and liablities denominated in fereign currencies are retransiated Into the functional currency at
the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on nen—trading activities are taken to other
income/expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Mon-monetary items that are measured at historical eost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot
exchange rates as at the date of recognition.

(i) Leases

The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or containg, a lease, That is, if the contract conveys
the right to cantrol the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

a. Company as a lessea
The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and feases of low-value assets. The company recognises lease labilities to make lease paymimnts and right-af-use
assels representing the right to use the underlying assets.

¥ Right-of-use assets

The company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (Le.. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment lasses, and adjusted for any remeasuremaent of lease Babilities, The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease Incentives received, Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
assets,

If ownarship of the leased asset transfers to the corfmpany at the end of the lgase term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful Iife of the asset. The right-
of-use assets are also subject toimpairment

# Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease labilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments incude fixed payments (including
insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives recelvable, variable lease payments that depend on an
indux or a rate, snd amounts expected to be pald under residual value guarantees, The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the company and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the COmpany exercising the option
to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
{unless they are incurred to produce inventaries) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment Bccurs.,

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its Incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencemant date because the interest rate implicit in the lease i not readily determinable, After the
commencement date, the amount of lease Babilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabllities is remeatured if there Is a
maodification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments fe.g<-changes to future payments
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resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments] or a change In the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset,

ks Shm-unnhmnmlﬂmn{hw-wm=mu
The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption toits shost-term leases e, those leases that
hawve a lease term of 12 manths or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. |t
also applies the lease of low-value AsSEls recognition exemption to leases of offics equipment that are
considered to be low value, Leaso payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value BL0E5 are recognised
35 BNpense on 3 straight-line basis gver the leass term.

b. Company as a lessar
Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset are classified a5 operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for an 3 straight-line basis aver

carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental incame,
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the peviod in which they are earned,

{xiil) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalants include cash an hand, highly liquid securities with an original maturity of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known armounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and uiage.

(xiv) Property, plant and equipment
Property plant and eguipment is stated at cost excluding the couts of Cay-to—day servicing, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated Impairmant in valus, :

Cast of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase pries (after deducting trade discounts and
rebates) induding import duties and non-refundable taxes, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its
working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the written down valee method using the rates
arrived at based on useful life of the assets prescribed under Schedule l of the Act which i5 alza as per the useful iife
of the assets estimated by the managerment.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and Bquipment are reviewed at each
firancial year end and adjusted prespectively, if appropriate. Changes I the expected useful life are accounted far
by changing the amortisation pefiod or methodology, as Appropriate, and treated ac changes in accounting
estimates,

Praperty plant and equipment is desecognised on disposal or when no futurs economic benefits are expected from
IS use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is recognised in other income f expense in the statemant of profit
and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of an itern of proparty, plant and equipment is
the date the recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a
performance obligation is satisfied in ind AS 115,

(xv]  Intangible assets
The company's other intangible assats mainly inglude the value of tomputer software and assets undeor

developmant,

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost ean be measured refiably, and it is probable that the expected
future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the COmpEny.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on Initial recognition at cost, The cose of Intangible assets
acquired in a business combination s their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less an ated amortisation and any accumulated Impairment lasses,

. 1
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Intanglble assets are amortised using the straightine method over a period of thres years, which i the
Management's estimate of its usefyl [Ffe. The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewsd at each financial year end
and adjusted praspectively, if appropriate

Impairment of non=financial assets

The company assessas at each reporting date, whather there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indicatfon exists, or when annual impairrment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amaunt Is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of dispasal and
its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carmnying amoant of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, récent market transactions are taken into acoount.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are initialty recognised in the financial statements (within “other liabilities") at fair value, being
the premium received. Subsequently, the llabllity is measured 2t the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognited less cumulative amartisation,

Any Increase in the liability relating to finaneial Buarantees is recorded In the statement of profit and Jass under
impairment of financial Instruments. The premiurn recelved is recognised in the statement of profit and loss under
interest income on & straight-line basis aver the life of the puarantes,

{xviil) Retirement and other employee benefits

a. Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognises contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable
to the scheme for service received befors the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contributian already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due fer services received before the balance sheet dats, then BECELY 3
recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment
or a cash refund,

b. Gratuity lability
Gratuity liability Is a defined benefit plan and the costs of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit mathod,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asser celling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on pian assets (excluding amounis
incleded in net interest on the net defined benefit ligbility], are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with
A corresponding debit or credit to retained earmings through OCI in the perigd in which they ooour,
Remeasurements are not reclassified te or lass in subsequent periods.

E.
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Past service costs are recogniced in profit or loss on the earfier of:
¥ The date of the plan amendment or curtallment, and
= The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is caleulated by aoplying this discount rate to the net defined benefit Nability or asset. The COMmpainy

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement

of profit and loss:

* Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service tosts, gains and losses on curtailments and
nanrautine settlements; and

# Netinterest expense or income

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtalled, the resulting change in bencfit that relates
to past service (‘past service cost’ or past service Bain") or the gain or loss on curtaiiment is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss, The Company recognises gains and losses an the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the settlermant OCCurs

.. Compensated absences
Accumulated leave, which is exsected to be utilized within the next 12 manths, is treated as short-term employes
benafit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amaunt that it EXPECTS to
pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated legve expected 1o be carried forward beyond twebve months, as lang-term
emplayee benefit for measurement purposes. Such leng-térm compensated absences are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit methaod &t the year-end,

Provisions

Provishons are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the
cbligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amaunt of the ebligation. When the effect of the time value
of money is material, the company detérmines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at &
pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability, The expense relating to any prowvision |5 presented in
the statement of profit and loss net of any relmbursemant,

[x5) Taxes

a, Currenttax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the cusrent and pricr years are measured at the amount expected to be
recevered from, or pald to, the taxation authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income
Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICD5) prescribed therein, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the Feporting date in the jurisdiction where the
CEmpany operates and generabes taxable income.

Current income tax relating to iterms racognised outside profit or loss i3 recognised outside profit or loss (efther in
other comprehensive incorme or In equity). Current taw items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate,

Current tax assets and current tax fiabilities are offsat only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the Hability on a net basis or simultaneously,

b, Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences st the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and
lizbilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting PAUrposes,

Deferred tax Habilities are recognised for all taxable temparary differences, except:

* Where the deferred tax liability arizes from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxabile profit or loss

|| (o



Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
% in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

# In respect of tawable temporary differences associated with Investments in subsldiaries, where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probabie that the tempaorary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Dwferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

# When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or lability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

# In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with Investments n subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised gnly to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporany differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewsd at each reparting date and reduced to the extent that itis
ne longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avaitable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset o be
utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable peofits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recoverad.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {efther In ather
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCl or directly in egquity,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax lisbilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

€. Goods and services tax fvalue added taxes paid on acquisition of assets ar on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

* When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable

# When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable froem, or payable to, the taxation autharity is included as part of non-financial
assels or liabilities in the balance shest.

{xxi} Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments

A contingent liability ks a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
QCouTence of non-oocurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the LCompany or a
present obligation that is not recognised becawse it is not probable that an outflow of rescurces will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent Hability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements, When there is 8 possible obligation or & present obligation in
respect of which the [ikelihood of autflow of resources is remote, no provision o disclofure is made

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, it is disclased only
when an inflow of economic benefits is highly probable.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order [net of advances) issued to the countergarties for
supplying/development of asset undisbursed portfolie loans. -




Lendingkart Finance Limited
Motes farming part of firancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(% in Lokks uniess otherwise statedl

4.

Contingent assets, contingent liabilities and cormmitments are reviewed at each reporting date.

{wxifl) Share ksue gupenses
Direct expenses in connection with Issug of shares are adjusted from securities premium account to the extent

available.

(xxfii] Earmnings per share
Basic earnings per share s computed by dividing profit after rax {excluding other comprehensive income)
attributable to the equity shareholders by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
YEAF.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to Bquity
sharehodders and the welghted average number of shares gutstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Critical accounting estimates and judgrnents

The preparation of the Company's financial statements réquires management to make judgements, estimates and
aiiumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, gssets and [abdlities, and the BLCOMpPaNYIng
disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent Hahilities, Uncertainty about these assumplions and estimates could
result in gutcomes that require & material adjustment to the carnying amount of assets or labilities affected in future

Accoufiting estimates and judgments are used In various line items in the financial staterments for e
=  Business model assessment

Fair value of financial instruments

Effective Interest Rate {EIR)

Impairment on financial assets

Prowvigions and ather contingent liabilities

Prowvision for tax expenses

Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment

YYY¥YYvyy

On 23 March 2022, Ministry of Corporate Affairs {'MCA") amended the Companies [indian Accounting Standards)

Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 01 April 2022, as below:

(i} Ind AS 103 = Business Combinations
The amendment clarifies that while applying the acquisition methad for recognition, the assets and liabllities taken
over, in a business combination, must meet the definitions of assets and liabifithes in the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framewark) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of india at the acquisition date. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any impact in
Its financial statemants,

(i} ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment
The amendment requires that excess of net sale proceeds of itermns produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall
not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of
@n item of property, plant, and equipmaent. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant
impact in its financial statements,

(i} Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
The amendment clarifies in relation to On@rous contracts that the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the casts
that relate directly to the eontract which consist of incremental costs of Tulfilling that contract {examples would be

(iv] Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments
The armendment darifies that while determining the fees paid [net of feas received) when a borrower applies the
“10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability, the borrower to include anly
fees paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid ar received by either the borrower
or lender on the other's behalf, The Com does not expect the smendment touhance any significant impact in its
financial statements. s




Lendingkart Finance Limited
mmmnﬁlmhrmmrmnmm

—
Cash on hand - -
Balances with hanks
- i CUrrent acoounts B.156.86 6,585.22
= In deposit accounts with original maturity upto 3 maonths 13,001.20 22 300,72
Total 21, 158.06 | J8E.048

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Cornpany, and #arm Interest at the respective short-term depasit rates. As at
31 March 2022, fixed deposits of % Mil are pledged against credit facilities (31 March 2021: ® 362.49),

As at 31 March 2022, fixed deposits of ® 12,791.80 {31 March 2031 % 12,244.76) a
capital requirements, pass-through certificates and other business purpose.

7 bala other than Cash and Cash equivalents
- %8 iy r i s -
Fixed deposits with bank
Depaosits - original maturity less than 12 months 8.294.51 12,902 87
Deposits - original maturity more than 12 months 5,662.81 1,193,
Totsl 957.32 14 20

re pledged against working

8 Loans
[l T.‘:u .'-'_'-PJF
Term loans 2,01,1772.79 24,10,045.78
Less: Impairment loss allowance (5.584.89) (16,176.53)
19159290 19386835
(Refer note 55 (C) for Credit risk)
(A} Out of Above
(1] Secured ) #
Less: Impairment loss allgwance = -
Total (i) -
[li) Unsecured 20,1009 2,100,045, 78
Less: Impairment loss allowance 19,584.89) jlﬁtl?ﬁ.ﬂl!
Total (i) _ 19159290 |  1,93.869.25
Total (A) = (i) » (i) 1,51,592.90 1,93,865.25
(B} Out af Abowe
1"] Loarns in Indis
i} Public Sectar 3 =
Less: impalrment loss allowance -
Total (i) P 2
(8) Others 2,01,177.79 2,10,045.78
Less: impairment bk allowance (9,584.85) 16,176.53)
Total (i) 1,91,59290 |  193,869.25 |
Tatal (1) = [I}{i 1,91 592.90 1,93 B69.35
lln: Loans outskde India % i
1,91,592 .90 1,93 863,35
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Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Interest receivable on assignment of loans ; :
Security deposits B74.49
Receivable from co-lenders 18,710,786 4,866.34
Others 4,326.26 1,750.79
Total 2 8,384.22

Less) - Impairrent allowance on other financial assets {2,927 76) (716
7,667.62 |

. E 3 '-_' il _r -k .'T":J'-"-Ej.‘-'_ﬁ'l:r'-ﬂ". eh 2071
—

Carry forward of unabsarbed losses 6,863.04 -

Provision for expenses allowed for Lax purpoies on payment basic 89,03 1127
Expected cradit loss 2.000.43 3,787.61
Unamartised processing fee 281,25 318.42
Lease transactions 98,59 50,24
Guarantee faes 164,51 24785
Unwinding discount of Security Depasit 27.69 32493
Difference between tax depreciation and depreciation charged for the

5 E2.81 35.83
fimancial reporting
interest on market linked debenturss 380.13 28510
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 9,967.48 4,871.75
Deferred tax lisbility on account of:
O account of securitisation and direct assignmiant 1,267,391 683.70
Unamaortised h-u:rn-ﬁg Coal 175.01 201,37
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,392,332 BES.07
__Deferred Tax Assets [Net) ___B575.16 __3,986.68
8,575.16 3,986.68 |

@
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MNotes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Gross block
As at 01 April 2020 41,35 99,18 504.53 3,705.07
Additions 15.98 1.98 - 1758 198.86
Dizposals 3.84 - 17 4,11 811.76
As at 31 March 2021 475,04 43,33 99.01 618.38 3,152.17
Additions 7288 0,95 3.07 76.50 9.42
Disposals 3.21 - 0.09 3,30 437
As at 31 March 2022 245.71 44 28 10193 91,98 3,187,323
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2020 251.85 14.61 30.11 296.61 491.42
Charge for the period 123.8a 6.08 31.04 16136 463,75
i Iy 0.53 . 0.11 0.64 102.07
As at 31 March 2021 375.20 21.59 61.04 457.83 852.10
Charge for the perind T8.11 565 17.82 101,58 357,26
Disposals 2.76 - 0.07 2.83 0.87
As at 31 March 2022 450.55 27.24 TETQ 556.58 1,249.45%
Net book value

at 31 March 2021 100,84 £1.74 37.97 160.55 2.339.07
A5 at 31 March 2022 95,16 17.04 23,20 135.40 !&T.Eil
(] There are no contractual commitments Tor the acquisition of property, plant and equi ]
(ii} There Is no borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 March 2027 (31 Mareh 2021 Hil].
[iii} There have been no revaluation during the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Mif}.

As at 31 March 2021 198.44
Additions 8016
Disposals -
|As at 31 March 2022 278.60
Accumulated amortisation

s at 01 April 2020 7293
Charge for the period 58,39
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2021 131,33
Charge for the perlod T0.74
Disposals .
As at 31 March 20232 20206
Net book value

As at 31 March 2021 &7.12
Ln_; at 31 March 2022 76.54
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for pre nt 5
=sibeiabe il cnlbet bt il bl By 1L R

— e ———
: Pariiculars
oo CFArMUEE

L Total 451,51 45527
16 Debi 5e
(i} Secwred
Privately placed redeemable non-convertible debentures 47.383.58 5867697
fssue of Pass Through Certificates 52,779.45 21,127.96
(i} Unsecured
Barrowings by issue of commercial papers 161190 .
Todal j,u:,mgz E&E
() At FUTRL
i} Secured
Frivately placed redesmable nar-tomeertible debantures 18,351.22 BB71EZ
Tatal 13,251,223 887362
(€] St of above
in inclia 57,2035 B7,401.27
Chrtside ndia 22,805 83 21,277,
Total Mjﬁmﬂ

(i) Proceeds from issue of Debt securities are utilised for the purpose for which the securities are Boued and Is in
lime with the Debenture Trust Deed entered by the Company,
{ii] The guarterly returns filed by the Company with banks and financial institutions are in agreement with the
books of accounts of the company.
[} There has been no default in repaymaent of Principal and Intevest on bosroewings.
() Mo borrowings are guarantesd by the directors of the Company.
ivi Funds ralsed on shart term hiﬂlhmmlhﬂtnlﬂldfwiﬂﬂ]lﬂm PUTDGSE,
(vi] The debenture are secured by:
3] A charge by way of hypothecstion of all book debts and recshables, present and future of the Company (To
the exient of 1 to 1.27 times of outstanding amount of debentures).
b) Corparate guarantee of the Holding Compary for 31 March 2022 is £ 43,228.92, 31 March 2071 5%
44823717
€} Guarantes by third party as at 31 March 2022: = 5670004 [31 March 2027: Mil).
o] First loss defaudt pearantes {FLDOG) in the farm of fixed deposits as at 21 March 2022 is % 135.45 (31 March
2021:% 1,451.00)
vh) First koss default guarantee [FLDG) in the form of fieed depasits for securitisation transactions as at 31 March
2022 i5 % 389869 {31 March 2021: % 4,338,62)
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Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

rUS Wl |

Na. af instalments 200 41 - i

Ampunt 48,568.52 £1,753.32 - 0,721.84
Puel to 2 ygars

Mo, of instalments m 25 1 g

Amounk 1252520 15,381.12 2.000.00 39,5906.32
Dule 2 to 3 years

Ho. of nstalments - & - G

- 9,371.57 - 9.371.57

- 1.00 - 1

- 2000.00 2,000.00

- .00 - 2

" &, 400,00 - 4,400.00

2,014.56

Z26,991.28
54 5 . 58
13,415 25 541541 - 2Z.830.70
1 3 1 5
Afmount 12800 7. 700.00 2,000 0 9.828.00

Do [ e A

Na. of instalments . 4,08 - i
Ammairt - B, 10048 - 8,100.48
i 2,012.41
40,534.57 |  43,765.83 2,366.04 B8,676.55
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Noles to mwmmmﬁ-mm:lmzm

fram banks 26,742 87 43.601.78
fram other than banks 25,584 53 20.492.04
Loans repayable on demand
Cremroiraft froem bank 845,69 L0356
Cash credit from banks 2.330.08 2, 6585.59
Cash eredit from other than banks | LSI0Mz| 2 1136.49 |
57,114,509 71,964.65
{ii] Unsecured
Term lpans
fram other than bamks -
~ Total 57,114.55 71,964,656
8] Dhit of abeve
In India 57.114.59 71,964, 66
Ouitsice Inadia =

ot S7a1as|  Tigease]

(i} The Company has used funds for the specific purpase far which the funds are raised from Banks and Financlal
inititutions.

(i) The quarterly raturns filed by the Company with banks and financial institutions are in agreement with the
hnh:ﬂatmmhnd'lhqmmparry.

(i) There has been no default in repayment of Principal and Interest on barrawings.

(iv) No borrowings are guaranteed by the directors of the Company,

(v} Funds raised on shart term basis have nat been used for fong term purpose,

b} Carporate guarantee of the Halding Company as.at 31 Mareh 20323 i3 % 60,960.50 (31 March 2031 ¢
E9,762.42)

€] First loss default guarantee (FLDG) in the form of security depasits as at 31 March 2022 s % 315,25 (31
March 2021: % 125.00)

@) Owverdraft and cash credit availed from banks secured by pledge fleed deposits a2 at 31 March 7022 s ®
5,707.21 (31 March 2021: © 6,231.62)
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mmn-m}mhﬁum ended 31 March 2022

(¥ in fokhs unless otherwise stated)

pital demand loans as at 31 March 2021

4549

Amoung 12,800.47 26,187.25 1,574.46 41,562.18
Due 1 to 2 years

Mo, of instalments 27 11% i 193

Amaunt 3,016.67 18,608.32 L378.95 21.00%.54
Due 2 ta 3 years

No. of instalments 11 7 . 3g

Asmsaunt 67533 372517 - &,400.50
Due 3 to 4 years

Interest accrued and impact of EIR _ 12720

Total __16492.47 [  a6520.74 3,953.81 67,093.82

In India 1.529.50 253012
Dside India - -
TEI 529, 2.5259.12
(i} The Company has used funds for the specific purpase for which the funds are raised fram Banks and Financial
instinutions.
{ii) The guarterly returns filed by the Compary with banks and financial institutions are in agreement with the
bogks of accounts of the company.

(i) There has been no default In repayment of Principal and Interast on borrowings.
Mﬂnbmmmmmnuﬂwmidkmﬁlhemmw,

- MMH mz

Due 3 to 4 years

M, of instalments 1.00 1.00

Amount 1,000.00 1,000,00

Dug 8 {0 § years

Mo, of instalments 1.00 1.00

AMmaunt 1,5000.00 1.500.00

Intarest accruad and impact of EIR 19.12
Total 250000 25292
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Lendingkart Finance Uimited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(% in lokhs unless otherwise stated) _
Hmlhﬁkrhﬂﬂn;fﬂﬂmmhﬂdnmm:ndfﬂmtmfmm
Dut of mquity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its helding company Le. Lendingkart Technologies
Pricite Uimited, are as befow: ______

e L

Enfsh.rihuﬁl
ﬁﬂg‘!dum' the year
D-tlliﬂudﬁhlnmﬂnhﬂhqmnnﬂuni!:hmmdﬂhuumhuuhh“hﬂd

A3 per the records of the Comparry, incuding fts register of sharehslders / members and other declarations
recerved from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and
beneficial awnerships of shares.

Thi Company has not allotbed any Boaus shares in the five years immediately preceding 31 March 2022,

The Company has not bought back equity shares during five years immedeately preceding 31 March 2023, mor has
It issued any share for consideration other than cash

Balance at the beginnéng of the year 67,245,584 BT252.72
Az Premium on issue of Equity Shares . -
- O i Shares - [E.HJ_

hhﬂumzmdﬂﬂumr E?Er“ E7.246.84

(i) Retaired Earnings

Balance at tha beginning of the year To.88 {565.06]

HAdd: Total comprehensive incame [14,119.53) 187999

Less: itern of other comprehensive income

Remseasurament gains / (losses) on defined bemefit plan {net of tax) {24.a4) (48.05]

Less : Transferred to Statutory Reserve u/'s section 45-IC of Resarve Bank of |I

ingla fct, 1534 : st
Balance at the end of the year 113,353.0) 790,88

(i) mﬂmmMMHJtdﬂuﬂnmuhﬂhAﬂ.im

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,657.14 128114

Add r-ﬂ.nmnttqnnfured d the year - 376,00
Balance st the end of the year 1657.14 1,657.14

Other Resarves

{1} Dther Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the year 4772 [0.33]

Remeasusement gaing / [losses) on defined benefit plan et of tax] 24.44 43.05
Balance at the end of the year 72,16 47.72

—Total of other equity 53,623.05 69,742.58 |
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Nates te financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
l'l'inh_ﬂumiu:mmudj

Interest on term boans BE582.81 43,210.04
Guarantee revenug From colending 2,769.50 663.21
interest on fixed deposits with banks 1,066, 45 01811
Other charges 281.53 233,85
DOther interest incame B3.77 57.18

Total _61,184.47 50,082.39

DT Pyt e e e ot e

Gain on assignment of loans : 27825
Less on modificaion of loans (158,82 {13.51)
Total 141712 254,74

Cnmmﬂ-lmn Income frnm |-|'HI.I1I'H:I' A33 48 229,95
Other Commission Income 416,58 158.62
Gain on derecognition of Asset g 166.60
Unwinding discount of security deposit [7z.09) 10285
Other Income 274.81 2555 |

Total 1,252.78 593.58

thanﬁllthhHhhl mmmm :mnrﬂud coit
O debt securities 7,650.75 B,37E.ES
On borrowings [other than debt securities) &,200.82 10,379,323
On securitisation Habilities 5,357.91 2,116.80
On commescial papers 1.55 235
On lease obligation 310,84 385,79
Others 42258 £31.84

On Financlal liabilities measurad at falr value
On debit securities 1,795 66 73068
Total 23,750.51 20,243.54
29

e 591 123771
1,237.71]

30

IfE,.EBl EHI 9,174.37

Other financial asseqs 31046 Ga8. 27T
Write affs

O ather than restructured portiolio 14,670.23

On restructuned pai-gl'uﬂn 33,082.14

. Total 41.471.20
During the year 31 March 2022, as a matter of prudence, the Company has made an 2

impairment of % 27,490.48 lakhs (net off provisions) on the restructured portfalio based on Enmpun-,r*!.
assessment, (31 March 2021: % 5,875.04 Lakhs).
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Mates te financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

hhrﬁu and wa wuu 3 992, 25 3,197.10
Contribution te provident and other funds 127.50 111.58
Reimbursement of ESOP expenses 28.89 3744
Leave benefit expense (3.17) BG.36
Gratuity 70.84 B1.44
|_Staff weifare expenses 1%4.43 12465
Total 341114 3638.58

T T
1 f
= -—-—---_.

55 ?5

Rent 4374 48.55
Repairs and maintenance 42,41 32.66
Insurance 15.25 19.87
Telephone and communieation expense 11936 135.55
Franking and stampling expenses 149.1 B6.50
Marketing and sales promotion expense 12483 50.21
Auditor's fees and expenses (Refer note 33,1 below) 21.26 36.89
Legal and Professional charges 975,16 Gi7.1B
Service charges of outsourced Employees 865.22 T02.48
Guarantee fess 1,431.17 1,371.55
License faes 47962 356,55
Business support services 39,66 82.21
Printing and stationery 7.94 8.34
Travelling expenses 62.48 14.45
Bank charges ELEE 261
Courier expenses 11917 61,12
Saftware license fees 1,218.45 745,48
Rates & taxes 16.42 32.55
Security expenses 11.07 15.16
FPE & Intangible assets under development written off 150020 o2
Director sitting fees 59.59 B.54
Housekeeping expenses 25.78 2548
C5A Expenditura GE.52 34.45
Miscellaneous EAEniEes Bl £2.96
Tatal
Audit fee 11_9-& 23.93
Tax audit fes .18 2.18
In other capacity :
Certification services 7.0 10.36
Reimbarsernent of expenses - 037
Total 21.26 B6.85
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Nmuhﬁunﬂimm{mmmmﬁﬂ 31 March 2022

34

Current tax for the year 3,128.07

Tax of earller years 34256 =]
32.95 3,128.07

Deferred taxes

Change in deferred tax assats 5.103.95 2,224.11

| Change in deferred tax liabilities [507.25) (78.50)
Met deferred tax expanse f (income) (4,508, 70) 2,144.21)
_ Total income tax sxpense {3,353.74] 983.86

[18,387.71)

25.17% I5.17%
Tax at statutory income tax rate (4,530.34) T08.68
1 d Maunts which are not de 14
Exponses disallawed 360.41 4486
tmpact of change in tax rate - 245,51
Dwsferred Lax expensde on account of OCI 16.19 [16.159)
(Intimin Gax SRpEnEE {4,253.74 Q983 EG

34.2 Defarred tax movement from 31 March 2021 to 31 2022:
et

[peterred tax asset on account of

Carry forward of unabsacbad losses

Provision for expenses aliowed for tax PLrpasEs an a33 112.74

paymant basls

Expected cradit loss 2,000.43 1,787.18 - 378761

Unamortised procossing foe 2B1.25 3raz - 318.42

Lease transactions 9555 {48.35) - 5034

Guarantes fees 154,51 83.34 - 24785

Unwinding discount of Security Depasit l 7.59 5,30 . .00

Difference between  tax depreciation  and

ceprecistion charged for the financial reporting 62.81 (25.58] ) 8.8

Interest on market linked debentures 380.13 [95.03) - 285,10
9.967.48 03.95) 32| 487175

Doferred tax liability on account of:

On account of securitisation and direct assignment 1,267.31 S83.61 . 63370

Unamartised borrowing cost 135.01 {76.36) - 20137
1352.32 507.25 " BES.07
B575.36 | [3,596.70] 5.2 3,936,658 |

¥ S ——— = T i R
A2 __ Particulars F11 JF i 31 MErch 2032

A) Net profit/[ioss) after tax for

yoar | SLMarch 2022 |31 Mnare| 12021
B d i

s[hji-:'qmte average number of equity shares for bask earnings per 44187931 44187931

We

(C) Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted eamings per 4,41,87,931 4,41,87,931

Basic earning per share in % (A/B) {3z.01) 4.15 o
Diluted earning per share in % (A/C) (32.01) 15| 2R |
w“mmhm!mmmn’nnu@_ e
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36. Segment Information

The Company operates in 3 single reportable segment ie. financing, since the nature of the loans are exposed to
similar risk and return profiles, Mo revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty

es Private Limited
Entity having significant influencs in Halding campany Fullerton Financis! Private Limized
ng sign NE con

(b} Name of Kay Managerial Persons

T " ; —
Independent directar Mr. Thallapaka Venakateswara Rao
Independent director Mrs. Umna Subramaniam
Independent director [Resigned on 17 June 2021) Mr. Gaurav Mittal

(] Transactions during the year with related parties

= e e e T
Maiy Eartiome v - N "'T.-:-...-_"_-.."..r'-.-r.lr_-.,'_ 31 Plarch 20
— SEVUNE R RN — IFlallL T dhPl L el L

1 Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited
License fee paid for use of software [Exchedes 50% reversal 440,07 327.11
of 5 and services tax input cred refer note 1 below) :
Business support charges paid (Excludes 50% reversal of 3639 75 43
0ods and services tax input credit)
Reimbursement of ESOP expenses (Excludes 50% reverssl 26.51 34.35
of goods and services tax input credit
Reimbursement of collection on behalf of holding company 7210
(refer nate 2 below) j

2 Mr. Gaurav Mittal ]
Director sitting fee (Excludes S0% reversal of goods amd 0.30 135
SEFvions tax input eradit)

3 Mr. Thallapaka Venakateswara Rao
Director sitting fee [Excludes 50% reversal of goods and 5.50 475
services tax input credit) ' 3

4 Mrs. Uma Subramaniam
Director sitting fee (Excludes S0% reversal of goods and 3.00
services tax input credit)

Grog )
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T e o

=
4l Fa g

March 2021
L

1| Lendingkart Technologies Private Uimited | (115.68) | (71
Z IMr. Gaurav Mittal - {0.0a]

(e} Guarantees given by holding Company*

Auaranteed by the Holding Company (incleding CC faciliny)
Sanctisned amount _1.22,025.80 1,61,660.53
Durtstanding amount B0,960.50 £9.762.42
3 Non-Convertible debentures issued to financial Institutions,
banks and other company guaranteed by the Holding Company
Sanctioned amount 46,900.00 63,750.00
e Qutstanding amount 43,228,392 44,823.77
3 Co-lending transactions with banks Buarantesrd by Holding 764.56 y
Company

* In respect of Guarantee fees- no payment is required to be made to Holding Company, as allowed under
ITFG Issue 2 bulletin 13, no guarantes commission is recognised in books of the Company

Note 1: The Company has entered into License Agreement with Holding Company dated 19 June 7015 for a term of
5 years, which was further renewed on 03 Septernber 2020 for a term of 5 years, for use of the lcensed software 1o

digitally lend money to Its customers.

The services provided by the Holging Company to the Company are of a specialised nature and hence difficult 1o
benchmark with other external sources. The Company has engaged the services of an expart to assess the arm's

tength price for this inter-company transaction,

Note 2: During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Helding Company has started issuing financial health report to the
barrowers of Lendingkart Finance Limited, consideration of which is received by the Company and later remitted to

the Holding Company.

3B. Tmnmsmnﬂmmmﬂu

1 Enfros India Solutions Private Limited 16.69 | Borrower
2 Mirzapur Electrical lndustries Private Limited 15.94 | Borroswer
3 Professianal Web Tech Private Limited 8362 | Borrower
4 Vats Electrodes Private Limited 7.70 | Borrower
5 CPL Media Private Limfed PRI 7.15 | Borrower
& Getwell Nutraceuticals India Private Limited I e 3.595 | Borrower
7 Karyana®9 Marketing Private Limited 236 | Borrower
3 Powertherm Systems Private Limited 2.04 | Borrower
| Tusamrnen Private Limited .56 | Borrower
10 Trueblue Tours And Taxi Private Limited 0.50 | Borrower
11 Wagnor Lighting Private Limited 0.20 | Borrower

39, Based on the information available with the Campany, there are no micre, small and medium Enterprises to whom the
Comgany has paid interest or any interest is payable on outstanding amounts (under the provisions of Section 16 of
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006) during the year ended 31 March 2023
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40,

41

a3,

The Company has incurred cash losses during the year ended 31 March 2022 of % 35,245.89 lincluding loan write-offs %
47,735.24) against profit for the year ended 31 March 2021: % 21,232.08 {including loan write-offs % 7,945 18],

As per SEBI Operational Circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021,/613 dated 10 August 2021, the Company Is not a Large
Corporate.

Employee stock option plans

The Holding Company has Employee Stock Option Plans [*ESOP") scheme in force. As per the ESOP scheme, Holding
Company has granted ESOP options to acquire its equity shares that would vest In a graded manner to Company's
employees. Based on the group policy/ arrangemant, Holding Company has eross charged the fair value of such ESOP,
The Company has recognised the same under the employes cost amounting to ¥ 28,89 for the year ended 31 March
2022 (31 March 2021: % 37.44).

Leases

Where the Company Is lessee:

The Company's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for premises which are renewable on
mutual consent at agreed terms. These leases have an average life of between ane and nine years. Lease rentals have
an escalation ranging between 5% to 15%. Leases for which the lease term ks less than twelve months has been
atcounted as short term leases,

- 5et out below are the carrying amount of right-of-use assets recognized and mavemaent during the year:

Balance ltthth-lﬂmﬂ_n!_ndﬂumr 2,339.07 3:213.65
Additions 9.42 208 86
Closure 3.40 709,69
Depreciation expanse 397.26 463.75
Change due to revaluation - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,547.83 2,339.07

f. et out are the carrying ameunt of lease liabilities and movement during the year:

T e I T
=R | <1 ¥ | =4 Marc

fdditions 16364
Accretion of interest 385.79
Closure [2.33) | . {741.06)
Payments [528.41) {605.02)
Closing Balance 2339.57 2,540.05

i, The expense relating to payments not incheded in the measurement of the lease Rability is as follows:

v,
one year
Later than one year and not later than five years 263377 2,134.76
Later than five years 23124 1,263.07
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 3,404,27 3,939.51

v. The effective interest rate of lease liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2022 [s 13.14% (31 March 2021;
13,95%). :
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vi. The following are the amount recognized in statement of profit or loss.

of uze of assets 463,75
Interest expense on lease liabilities 320.84 385,79
EE"E ulatlgta short term leases (included in othar Expenses) 43.74 43.95
Loss) (Gain] on dWMH of assets - [166.60]
Total Amount recognized In statement of profit and loss account 761.84 731.93

44, mmmlnmm{unmﬂhﬂ

Professional Fees
Software Expenses
Total

45.  Contingent liability and Commitmants
a) Contingent Liability

T P s

| Guarantees excluding financial EuBTantees

Credit enhancements provided by the Company towards securitisation
{including corporate guarsntee, cash collateral and loan sssets £,805.26 9,108.00
retained a5 Minimum retention Requirement {MRR]}
|_Corporate guaranteés in case of co-lending transactions 27,557 86 10,533,549

b) Capital and other commitments

F—

Loan sanctioned not yvet dishursed 2,862,232 3,130.30
Other capital advances (Excludes 50% reversal of goods and service tax 1116 13.60

Input credit)
46.  Retirement benefit plans

A.  Defined benefit obligation

Contribution to Gratuity fund [Unfunded):

The gratuity plan is governed by the Paymaent of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Gratuity Act. an employes who has
completed five years of servies is entitled to specific benedits, The level of benefits provided depends on the member's
length of service, managerial grade and salary at retirement age.

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19, actuarial valuation was done in respect of the aforesaid defined
benefit plan of gratuity based an the follawing assumptions:

Discount rate [per annum) B.50%
Rate of salary increase 13.00% 12.00%
Rate of employee turnover (per annum)
Age band
25 & Below 28.00% 18.00%
45 o 35 26.00% 15.00% .
35 10 45 24.00% 12.00% i L
45 to 55 22.00% 9.00% : L5 £
55 & Abave 20.00% G, 00% e, Ay
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fii.

wii.

D!ﬂntd l:rl'n-uﬁt ﬂlldma'l:lmat ﬂiehechn[n[nfth! year 157.29 155.27
Interest on defined benefit obligation 9.90 1039
Current service cost &0.54 71.05
Benefits pald (15.20) [15.18)
Remeasurerments due to :

Actuarial loss/|gain) arising from change in demographic sssumptions [32.29) 5

Actuarial lessfigain) arising from change in financial assumptions 314 1.32

Actuarial | in) a an account of cha {2.91) {65.56]
Presant Value of obligation at the end of the year 176.37 157.29

Assets and labilities recognised in the balance sheet:

Fresen: wlunnfthedtfimd bmeﬂl: uHLgmmatme enu q[uumr
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
Fumnded Status [Surphus/ [Deficit))

. e el Rl

Net liability recognised in the balance sheet

157.29

Expanses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

_E!ﬂmmwnuwmhmumﬂmﬁlr

E:panmucmhdhhmttmamnfmhﬂmmhmm{m#

Actuarial loss f_llm}nn pm-umlugmt benefit obligation

Total remeasurement mfmmmﬂu_mgm in OCI

Recontikation of net mﬂﬂlibﬂhﬂ recognised:

Met defined benefit lsbiity/{asset] a3 at the heginning of the year

Expense charged to Statement of Profit and Loss 70.84 B1.44
{Benefit paid directly by the employer] {19.10) {19.18)
Amaunt recognised in other comprehensive incoma 132.66) {64.24)
Net Liability/{Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 176.37 157.29
Sensithvity analysis:

Impau:t of increase in 0.5% on raﬂ nl’ d!nnnunlin;

Impact of decrease in 0.5% on rate of discounting 180.44 164.19
Impact of increase in 0.5% on rate of salary increase 179.45 16157
Impact of decrease in 0.5% on rate of salary increase 173.08 152,95
Impact of increase in 10% on rate of employee turnover 1go.53 152.70
Impact of decrease in 10% on rate of emploves turnover 183.72 16185

S,
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wiil.

47.

Mmhmﬂyﬁﬂmmmmm

B
E——— — T = = — = -
- 2t S PR
PFParticilars e

“coms, W -
Expected benefits for year 1
Expected benefits for year 2
Expected benefits for year 3
Expected benefits for year 4
Expected benefits for year 5
Expected benefits for years 6 to 10

The Experience adjustment on plan assats:

et | — o L

Defined benefit obligation

| Plan assets & = % R
| Surplusy (deficit) {176.37) {157.29) {159.27) (82.50) {44.7 2)
Experience adjustment of plan . .

ATy i
Experience adjustment of plan {2.91) {B5.56) {6.21) {5.26) {10.45)
liabdlities

Compensated absences:
Maturity Profile

Present value of unfunded obligations 16E.831 226,23

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 13.17) 86.36
Discount rate (p.a.) 6.10% 6.50%

Salary escalation rate {p.a) 12,009 12,00

Provident Fund:

The Company contributes in Provident Fund towards employees which is the defined contribution plan for quealifying
employees. Under this Scheme, the tmmnrhrequrrummﬂﬁhuuspeﬂﬁtdmemnfmﬂrml cost to fund
the benefits. The Company recogmited % 126.63 (31 March 2021 @ 108.30) for provident fund contributions in the
Statement of profit and loss.

The [ndian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which subsumes the Provident Fund and the
Gratuity Act and rules thereunder. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has also released draft rules thereunder
13 Novernber 2020 and has invited suggestions fram stakehalders which are under active consideration by the

notified and become effective.

tqrpnrltqh:hihﬂnnshﬂmhm
Deetails as Section 135 of the nies Act, 2013 is as under:
Amount reguired to be spent by the during the yvear ES.-E:| 34.45

Amount of exgenditure incurred 27.18 0.85
Transferred 1o CSR u account for 0 4144 33.60
shortfall at the end of the vear - -
Tatal of prévious years shortiall - -
Details of related party transactions M. N.A

*The Company has transferred unspent amount In @ separate CSR account as per section 135(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013,
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Nature of CSR Activities:

For Financial Year 2021-22

(i) Sustained Menstrual Protection for Unprivileged and Adolescent Girls

Implementing Agency: Ahmedabad Women's Action Group, 8 public charitable trust.

Froject Details: The Company, through Ahmedabad Women's Action Group (AWAG), a public charitable trust, had
undertaken the various activities for Improving healthcare and creating awareness about and inculcating sustalned
menstrual protection and heaithy diet practices for unprivileged and adolaseent girls in Ahmedabad.

(Hl) Gond Schoal Project

Implementing Agency: One Good Step, a public charitable trust,

Project Details: The Good Schoal Project — For developrment of government schools in Bengalury, The duration of
the project Is 18 months, commencding from March 2022,

For Financlal Year 2020-21
(i} Distribution of sewing machines to a group of women,
Implementing Agency: Ahmedabad Women's Action Group, a public charitable trust,

Project Detalls: The Company made contribution to Ahmedabad Women's Action Group [AWAG), & public charitable
trust, for distribution the sewing machines to a group of needy women on Intemational Women's Dary, e, 8 March,
2021, in order to facilitate them for earming their livelihood, and to make them self-reliant.

(if}  Construction of building premises for undertaking CSR activities
Implementing Agency: Shree Jain Shwetambar Terapanthi Sabha, Ahmedabad, a public charitable trust,

Project Details: Construction of the building premises for carrying out primarily the CSR activities, Le. promoting
healthcare, promoting education and empowering women, The duration of the project is 3 years.

The Company does not have any outstanding loans against gold jewellery as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Nil.

Capital:

The Company actively manages its capital base to cover risks inherent to its business and meet the capital adequacy
requirement of RBI. The adeguacy of the Company’'s capital |s monitored uzing, among other measures, the
regulations H4uwed by RBI.

Capital management

Objective:

The Company’s abjective Is to mainzain apgropriate levels of capital to support its business strategy taking into account
the regulatory, economic and commercial envirenment. The Company aims to maintain a strong capital base to
support the risks inherent to its business and growth strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain a higher capital
base than the mandated regulatory capital at all times.

Planning:

The Company’s assessment of capital requirement (s aligned to its planned growth which fosmd part of an annual
operating plan which is approved by the Board and also a long-range strategy. These growth plans are aligned to
assessment of risks— which include credit, liquidity and interest rate. -
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5.

5.

[

il

The management monitors its capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR} on @ monthly basis and the same is also
maonitored in Assets Liability Management Committes [ALCO).

The Company endeavours to maintain its CRAR higher than the mandated regulatory norm. Accordingly, increase in
capital i5 planned weil in advance to ensure adequate funding for its growth,

Regulatory capital

Tier | capival

Tier Il capital . 852529

Total capital 46,028.02 76,373.17

Risk weighted assets [RWA) 1,77,526.13 1,97,127 .66

Tier | CRAR 25.53% 34.42%

Tler Il CRAR - 4.37%
| CRAR 25.93% 38.74%
Transfers of assens:

Trmﬁendﬂﬁmuhlmmnmmmnhmnﬂ-irmmw

Securitisation
The Company has Securitised certain boans, however the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and
rawards, hence these assets have not been de-recognised in its entirety.

— T T R T T [ T R TR
L 31 Mak : 31 March 2021

L ZUE L

akocheotson b

Carrying amount of transferred assets meatured at

amortised cost (indluding loans placed as collateral) 58,200.50 26,580.54

Carrying amount of associsted liabilities (Debt securities - 52,779.459 21,127.96

measured at amortised cost)

Fair value of assets 59,200.40 26,638 84

Falr value of assoclated liabilities 52,779.49 21,127.96
) Met position at Fair Value 6,420.91 5 510.88

Transferred of financlal assets that are derecognised in their entirety

The Company hes not transferred any assets that are derecegnised in thelr entirety where the Company continues to

have continuing imvalvement,

Ewents after reporting date:
There have been no events after the reporting date that require adjustment/disclosure in these financial statements.

Fair values:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a [tability in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions fioe., an exit
price], regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated wsing a valuation technigue.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of
valuation technigues.

Valuation framework
The Company's valuation frarmework includes:
®  Benchmarking pricés against observable market prices or other independent SOUTCES; o .
* Development and validation of fair valuation models using moded logic, inputs, outputs and ad,ll,m.ffi’mu. 2

"'H.'..'\'"
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These models are subject to approvals by various funetions including risk, treasury and finance functions. Finance
function Is responsible for establishing procedures, governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance
with sccounting standards.,

Valuation methodologies adopted

»  Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except for market lnked
debentures and cash and bank balances which are measured at fair value through profit and loss,

*  Fair value of Market linked cebentures is derived from independent valuer. The valuation is done based an
discounted cashflow method. The option portion is projected using Monte Carlo simulations and Geometric
Brownian Motion is used to project the Index levels into the future, The Index levels are projected based on
certain assumptions and the value of debenture is then arrived at by discounting the respective cashflows.

= The Company has determined that the carrying values of expenses payables, bank overdrafts and other
current liabilities are a reasonable approximation of thelr fair value and henee their carrying value ane desmed
to be fair value,

54.  Fair value hierarchy:
The Company determines fair values of its financial instruments scesrding to the follewing hierarchy:

Level 1: valuation based on quoted market price: financial instrurments with quated prices for identical instrurnents in
active markets that the Company can access at the measurement date.

Level 2: valuation based on using observable inputs: financlal instruments with quated prices for similar instruments
in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar Instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments
valued using models where all significant inputs are observabbe,

Level 3: valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: — financial instruments valued using valuation
technigues where one or more significant inputs are unobservable, This Is the cae for contingent consideration and
indemnification assets.

Cash and Cash equivalent 21,158.06 - 2B, 786.04 -
Bank bilances other than Cash and Cash

equivalents 13,957.32 = 14,056.80 -
Loans 1,91,552.80 - 1,93, B659.25 -
Other financial assets 24,013.63 - 7667 .62 -
Total financial assets 2.50,721.51 = 2,44,419.71 -
Financial liabilities:

Dbt Sacurities 1,01,7r4.97 18,251.22 9,804.93 8.873.62
Borrowings [other than debt securities) £7.114.59 - 71,964.66 -
Subardinated Debt 2,529.50 - 2.528.12 .
Other financial liabilitles 21,619.58 ot 11,112.593 -
Total financial liabilites 18,251.22 1,65,411.64 B,B73.62
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55.

Fair value of financial Instruments measured at amortized cost:

Finane
Cash and Cash equivalent Level 1 21,158.06 28,785.04
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents Lewel 1 13,957.32 14,096.80
Loans Level 3 1.91.592.90 1,93,869.25
Orther financlal astets Level 3 2401363 7,667.62
Total financial assets 2,50,721.91 |  2,44,419.71
Financlal labilitbes:
Debt Securities Level 3 1,01,774.97 79.804.93
Borrowings (other than dabt securities) Level 3 57,114,589 71,964,656
Subordinated Debi Level 3 2,529,506 2,529,132
Cither financial labilitiss Level 3 __21619.58 11,112,93
|_Total financial liabilities 1,83,038.64 1,65411.64

Financial risk management:

The Company is exposed to certain financial fisks namely credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk Le. interest risk and
foreign currency risk. The Company's primary foeus is to achleve better predictability of financlal markets and minimize
potential adverse effects on its Fnancial performance by effectively managing the risks on its finandial assets and
Habilities,

The Principal objective in Compary "t risk management processes is to measure and monitor the varigus risks
associated with the Company and to follow policies and procedures to address such risks. The Company's risk
management framework is driven by its Board and its subcommittees including the Audit Committee, the Assst
Liability Management Committee and the Risk Management Committes, The Company gives due importance te
prudent lending practices and have implemented suitable measures for risk mitigation, which include verification of
credit history from credit information bureaus, personal verification of a customer's business and residence, technical
and legal verifications. For credit risk refer nate 55 ().

Liguidity Risk;

The Company’s Board of Directors has averall responsibility of management of lquidity risk. The Board decides the
strategic policies and procedures of the Company to manage liquidity risk In accordance with approved risk tolerance
limits,

The Asset Liability Committee of the Company consisting of the Company’s seniar management, is responsible for
ensuring adherence to the risk tolerance limits as well as implementing the liguidity risk management strategy of the
Comparry. The Company continuously monitors liquidity in the market; and as a part of its ALCO strategy, the Company
maintains a Ilmidhvhlﬂm'minageﬂtrymamw]nmmt-ﬂﬁktn reduce this risk,

The Company also has a Risk Oversight Committee reparting to the Board and responsible for evaluating overall risks
faced by the Company including liquidity risk.

The Company maintains a judicious mix af borrowings from banks, money markets and public and ﬂﬂﬂrﬁ!pﬂs{t_s. Thi
Company continues to diversify its sources albacrowings with an emphasis on lenger tenor bnfm-.ﬂnn_Thlisya;eg-f
of balancing varied sources of funds and { owings has helped the Company to maintain a 't T L

; -%_@ :

liability position. Kol
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s financlal assets

and liabilities:

Finandal Assets

Cash and Cash equivalents 21,158.06 - 28.786.04 -
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash

s 8,294.51 5,662.81 12,502.87 1,193.93
Lodns 11494279 | 1,36776.86 | 12691482 | 15301583
Other financial assats 16,173.97 7,839,866 4,104.78 3,562.84
Total Financlal Assets 1,60,569.32 |  1,50,279.33 | 1,72.708.51 | 157.772.60
Financial Liabilities

Debt Other

mmﬁ::;'"”“{ than securitisation 41,177.69 38.916.26 35,622.77 43,040.19
Securitisation fiabilities 38,260.48 14,519.01 16,855.28 4,272.58
Barrawings (other than debt securities) 49,388.38 12,437.01 52,398.77 27,551.79
Subordinated Debt 35850 3,196.97 358.50 3,555.47
Other financlal Kabilities 487173 5,303.62 4,331.55 4,916.54
Total Financial Liabilities 1,34,056.78 75.372.87 | 1,09577.87 33,336.67

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities ana

lyzed (maturity analysis) according to when they are

to be recovered or
Assets
Financlal assets
Cash and Cash eguivalents 21,158.06 - 21,158.06
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash eguivalents 9,.302.60 4,654.72 13,957.32
Loans 81,026.11 1,10.566.79 1,51,552.90
Other financial assets 16,173.97 7,639,656 24,013,563
Mon-financial assets
Current tax assets [Net) - 1,660.32 1,660.32
Deferred tax asset (Net) . 8,575.16 £.575.15
Property, plant and equipment = 135.40 135.40
Other Intangible aidas - 7654 T6.54
Intangible assets under development - . .
Right-of-wse asaets - 1,947.83 1,947.83
Qther non-financial assets 440 35 11.16 451,51
Total assets 128.101.08 1,35,457.58 2,63,568.67
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Dt Securities 74,078.53 45,947 .66 1,20,026.19
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 45, 606.57 11,507,892 57,114.59
Subordinated Debt 30.45 2,499.05 2,529.50
Other financial Rabilities 9.E61.8]1 11,758.17 21,615.58
Non-Financlal liabilities
Current tax Habilities [net) - . =
Provishons 108.20 23658 345.18
Giher non-financial liabilities 1.561.66 330.13 1.891.79
Total liabilithes 1.31,246.57 7227991 2,03,526.83
*For any ALM mismatches, the Company ot reade liquid assets and sanction fines. . :

-
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Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 28,786.04 - 28.786.04
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12.%02.88 1,193.52 14,096.80
Loans 79,443 40 1,14,475.85 1,93 854,25
Other financial assets 4,104,749 3,562.83 7667 62
Non-finaneial assegs
Current tax assets {net) 24 55 24,55
Deferred tax asset (Net) - 3.,986.68 3,885,658
Property, plant and equipment 160.55 160,55
Other Intangibie assets . 67.12 67.12
Intangible assets under developmens 145,41 14541
Right-of-use assats - 2,335.07 2,339.07
Other non-financlal assets 427 84 3243 455.27
Total assets 1.25,659.95 1,25,938.41 2,51,598.35
Liabilithes
Financial liabilities
Debt Securities 47, 753,48 40,925.07 BRG78.55
Sorrowings (Other than debt Securities) 46,617.18 25,347 .48 T1,964.66
Subsrdinated Debt 30,45 2,498 57 2,529.12
Other financial labilities 5,216.42 5,896.51 11,112.93
Non-Financlal abllitias
Current tax liabilities (net) 1,189.18 - 1,189.18
Provisions mn 35431 383,52
Other non-financial liabilities 254,75 133428 1,589.03
Total kabilities 1,01,090.67 75,346.32 1,77.436.99
Market Risk:

(i} Foreign currency risk
Fareign currency risk is the risk that ﬂutﬁirﬂhurfummhﬂnwsurmqpusureﬂl fluctuate because of
changes in foreign curreney rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in forelgn exchange rates relates
primary to certain vendors in trade pavables.

Foreign currency exposure risk
The Company's exposure for fareign currency risk at the end of reporting period are as follows:
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(i} interest rate risk

The Company is subject to interest rate risk, since the rates of leans and borrowing might fluctuate over the tenure
of instrument. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond control, including the monetary policies
of the Reserve Bank of India, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and international economic
and political conditions, inflation and other factors. In order to manage interest rate risk, the Company seek 1o
optimize borrowing profile between short-term and long-term loans. The liabilities are categorized into varfous
time buckets based on their maturities and Assot Liability Management Committee supervise an Interest rate
sensitivity report periodically for assessment of interest rate risks.

Car
o, - Parti '__":'.-F | March :.?_' 31
Debt Secu e) 18,251.22
Debt Securities (fixed) 1,01,774.97 58,676.97
Borrowings {other than debt securities) twariable) 24,913.14 24,489 609
Barrowings [other than debt securities) (fixed) 32,201.45 68,602.93
Subordinated debts {variable) . -
Subordinated debts (fixed) 2,529.50 252912
Total Borrowings 1,79,670.28 1,63,172.33
Sensltivity analysis:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all ather
variables being constant) of the Company's Statement of profit and o

e T e 't on profit before tax

ol B s it N el

e il B S
| 31 el

S0

- o =l

Borrowings, debt securities & subordinate debt
Increase by 50 basis paints
Dwcrease by 50 basis points

{215.82) (166.82)
215.82 166.82

€. Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financlal loss arising out of a customer or counterparty failing to meet their FERFYITIEAL
abligations to the Company. The lending model focuses an SME Lending. The nature of the product is unsecured,

The Company assesses the credit quality of all financial instruments that are subject to credit risk.

Classification of financial assets under varlous stages
The Company classifies its financial assets in three stages having the following characteristics:
= Stage 1: unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk since Initial recognition on which a 12-
maonth allowance for ECL is recognised.
* Stage 2: a significant increase In credit risk since initial recognition on which a lifetime ECL is recognised.
*  Stage 3: objective evidence of impafrment, and are therefore considered o b in default or otherwise credit
Impaired on which a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Unless identified at an earlier stage, all financial assets are deemed to have suffarad & significant increste in credit
risk when they are 30 days past due (DPD) and are accordingly transferred from stage 1 to stage 2. For stage 1 an ECL
allowance is calculated based on a 12 month Point in Time (PIT) probability weighted probability of default (PD). For
stage 2 and 3 assats a life time ECL is caleulated based on a lifetime PO,

The Company has caleutated ECL using three main components: a probability of default [PD), a loss given default
(LGD) and the exposure at default (EAD) along with an adjustment considering forward macro-economic conditions.

Financial instruments ather than Iloans, Interast receivable on assignment of loans and Recelvable fram co-denders
were subjected to simplified ECL approach under Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments’ and accordingly were not subject
Lo sensitivity of future economile conditions.
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Below is the summary for the approach adopted by the Company far various components af ECL viz., PD, EAD and
LGD using empirical data where relevant:

*  Probability of Defauit (PD)
The Company’s operates with its internal rating models In which its customers are rate from “A" to “F* using internal
grades. The models incerporate bath qualitative and quantitative information and, in addition to information specific
to the borrower, utilise supplemental external infarmaticn that could affect the borrower’s behaviour. PDs are then
adjusted for Ind AS 10% ECL calculations to incorporate forward looking information and the Ind AS 109 Stage
classification of the exposure,

PD it based on a internal rating model, days past dus and various historical, current and forward-looking infarmation.
Stage 1: based on internal rating model
Stage 2: based on days past due
Stage 3: 100%

¢  Exposure at Default (EAD)
The exposure at default represents the outstanding and interest accrued of the financial instruments subject to the
impairment caleylation.

*  Loss given Default (LGD)
LGD values are assessed based on key characteristics that are relevant to the estimation of future cath flaws, The
appliied data is based on historically collected loss data and involves a wider set of transaction characteristics & wel|
as borrower characteristics.

Further recent data and forward-looking economic seenarios are wied in order to determine the ind AS 108 LGD rate
for each group of financial instrurents, When assessing forward-looking Information, the expectation i based an
multiple scenarios, Examples of key inputs invoive changes in payment status, geographical location, industrial sector
or other factors that are indicative of losses in the Company.

Transtess during the year
Transtens to Stage 1 444201 | qad1a.18) {27.83) - 1360 | (13537 .97 (e8]
Transfers to Stage 2 {a0955%) |  a095.00 % -+ | (4286007 | &1BEsT1 {5.54) {000}
Transfers to Stape 3 (10.672.34) | Bao7e2s) | aoBanss -| ra7ees) | (s6es) | moosst -

Chanpes 1o contractual cass
fhowii due o modficstions
nat resuiting in
dErecogtian
Changes In openlag credit
RPN (adkcioanal
disbursement nek of | (BTOSS0E] | (GAE0PY) | (242353 (9620601 | (8508991} | (5,606.44) {8s8.58) | (92,595.33)
repasymaents]

MNéw  oredit  Ewposures
doring the yesr, net of | 13037186 115700 #1534 | 13137991 T4,575.73 451 §1 20700 T 7433
rEndymEnts
AUt writhen off = - | MRTE2AT) | (amysiam 7,585 8| (784588
“"h'mlh‘“"'"' LEII00A3 | 10,132.47 7,834.49 Ln.:n.?sl 1,50,399.58 | =4 55402 515218 | 210,045.78
'Humhrnrhmhﬁm-afuhrwnmnM-m:hm:lﬂ.mqai'Mn:hmtrz.?!zr

k.00 56.50 2,288.17 L757.0% 404,90 | 10ES7.42 BRI ET IRIIET
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darin

Transfers during the year

Traraders to Stage 1 675,06 {E5S.43) [£5.64) - 26,15 125,62} [053)

Trangfers to Stage I {125.55) 138,55 = - [5G 54 6a7, 75 13.11)

Transfers i $tage 3 32779 | peenaz) E,732,03 . {13437 | [zea0m 41724
Changss o contracusal
cah  fows

b m"’ a0s . 840,61 S40.66 11265 | 1,738.15 mE9r | zaeem:
fesulting in derecognition
Changed in opening credi
i “':"”: (78304 | (112043 | a1 30987 | 3r.e06.e0 mos) | so0e728 | 7eshas | 1nessas
repapmeEnts)
Miw  credf  exposures
during the year, et pf 241009 Wz 49152 3,113.67 1,996.30 14299 202102 224131
QRN
AMounts wristen cif - (47,752.57) | (ar752.37) - | (npanEE | [7.945.88)
|mnml;:l-u=fm LERO.O2 157152 463245 8,504.89 8013.11 | 8,825.99 332643 |  16,176.53

The table below surmmarises the Eross carrying valuvesd and the associated
stage wise for loan portfalio:

1,07152

allowances for expected eredit loss [ECL)

Gross carrying amount
Allowanece for ECL

ECL Coverage ratio

Measurement uncertainty and sensitivity analysis of ECL estimates:

Expected credit loss impairment loss allowances recognisad in the finandal s
C outcomes, calculated on a probability-welghted b

of possible economi

The recognition and measwrerment of ECLE
looking economic forecasts and fts impact as an integral part of ECL madel
ECL sensitivity to future economic conditions

1 ufﬂnﬂu IInls un:ter

Gross carrying amount of loans a,u:,l:r:r.
Reported ECL 9,584.89
Reported ECL coverage 4.76%
ECL amounts for alternate sconario®

Downside scenario (10%) 10,543.38
Upside scenario [10%) 8.626.40
ECL cowverage ratios by scenario

Downside scenario {10%) 5.24%
Upside scenario (10%) 4.20%

conditions:

tatements refiect the effect of a range
#5is, based on the economic scenarins

rvohes the use of estimation. Itis necessary to formulate multiple farward

LI P
AT et e i

2,10,045.78
16,176.53
7.70%

10,332.25
845366

4.92%

......
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*During the previous year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has not considerad Management overlay for
altérnate scenaria,

L&, Other statutary Information:

L The Company does not have any Benami property, and no proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.
i,  The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutary period.
ii.  The Company has not traded or invested in Crypbe currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,
W.  The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) ar entity(les), including
foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
() directly or indirectly lend ar invest in ather perians or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Comparny (LItmate Beneficlaries) ar
(H) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
¥.  The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), intluding foreign entities {Funding
Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identifled in any manner whatsoever by
of on behall of the Company (Ultimate Benaficlaries) or
i}  provide any guarantee, security or the Iike to or on behalf of the Ultimate Baneficiarios
vl.  The Company does not hawe any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accaunts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessmants under the Income Tax Act, 1961
{such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
wil. The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank, financial institution or any other lender,

57. Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification - RBIf2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated 06 August
2020 and RBI/2021-22/31/DOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 05 May 2021:
As at 31 March, 2022, the Company had exposure to accounts classified as Standard consequent ta implementation
of resolution plan of % 48,139.85 Lakhs, of which during the year ended 31 March 2022 addition to exposure is of ¥
3,783.36 Lakhs, the aggregate debt that slipped inta NPA is € 1,210.81 Lakhs, amount written of i ® 37,263 68
Lakhs, amount paid by the borrowers Is ® 7,050,563 Lakhs and Exposure to accounts classified as Standard consequent
to implementation of resolution plan as at 31 March 2022 js = 6,398.08 Lakhs,

58. Pursuant to BBl eircular DORSTR.REC.EE/21.04.048/2021-27 dated 12 November 2021 on "Prudential Morms on
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances - Clarification™ the Company has
aligned its definition of default from number of instaliments sutstanding approach to Days Past Due approach. On
15 February 2022, RE| allowed deferment till 30 September 2022 of Para 10 of this circular pertaining to upgrade of
Non-performing accounts, However, the Company has not opted for this deferment.

L4, Disclosure for liquidity coverage ratio as per RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001,/2019-20 dated
04 November 2019 is not applicable as the Company is NBEC-NDSI with an asset size of less than € 5,00,000 Lakks,

60. Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notiflcation - RBI/DOR/2021-22/36 DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 24
September 2021:
(a) Details of transfer through assignment In respect of loans not in default during the financial year ended 31
March 2022: (Excluding transactions entered with respect to circular - RBI/2020-21/63 FIDD.CO.Plan.
BC.No.Bf 04.09.01/2020-21).

i Particulars

Amaount of loans transferred through assignment 4,953.40
Retention of beneficial economic Interest 20.00%
Weighted average residual maturity [in months) 19,01
W«e!;htad average I'H:Id'rng period (in months) X 13.52

| Coverage of tangible security coverag
Rating-wise distribution of rated loans




Lendingkart Finance Limited
Motes forming part of financial staiements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(¥ in Lakhs unless atherwire stated)

(b} The Company has not acquired Joans through assignment during the financial year ended 31 March 2022,

[c) The Company has not acguired [ transferred any stressed loans during the financial year ended 31 March
2022,

61.  Distlosure as per RBI Master mrmnuun,m.m;u.uw:mmmdmakmmm 01, 2016, as amended
from time to time ["RB1 Directions'],
Ag per the BB directions the Company was classified as & Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company during
the previcus financlal year based on its assets size. Accordingly, disclosures applicable to Systemically iImportant Non-
Deposit taking Company as per RBI directions are Eiven,

A.  Capital Risk Aszet Ratio

(8} | Capital Risk Asset Ratio [%) 25.93% 38.74%

i) Capital Risk Asset Ratio (%) - Tier | Capital [%) 2593% 34.42%

fch Capital Risk Aszet Ratlo (%] - Ther 11 Capital (%) - 4.32%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-li capital

14 {Ralsed during the year T Nil, previus year T Nil) 2:300.00 2,500.00

B. Detalls of investments

L Shares:
3. Eguity

b. Preference
iil. Debentures and Bonds
fil. Units of mutval funds
v, Government Securities
v. _Others (please specify)

i. Shares

3. Equity

b,  Preference
Ii. Debentures and Bonds
iii.  Units of mutual funds
.  Government Securities
¥. Others (please specify)

|Lgng Term investments:
1 Quoted: NIL NIL

L Shares:

8, Eguity

b. _Preference
ii. D'Eht@iiﬂdﬂdl‘lﬂ!
iii. Units of mutual funds
v, Government Securities
— ¥ Others (please specify)

Z. !!Hiilﬂﬂ' MIL NIL
I, Shares;

@, Equity

b. Preference
i, Debentures and Bonds
iil. _Units of mutual funds
iv. Government Securities
¥. Others (please specify)

—

ML HIL
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L. Disclosure for securitisation®

a. The information on securitisation of the Company as an originater in respect of autstanding amount of assets

Sructune is g
No. of SPvs
transactions

below:

sponsored by

Tatal amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPys
sponsored by the NEFC

Total amount of exposures retained by the NEFC to comply
with MRR as on the date of Balance Shest

a, Off balance sheet exposure

First Loss

4,629.80

110.53

Others

b. On balance sheet exposure

First Loss

4,200.92

3.,904.20

Othars [Overcallateralization)

8,543.99

5,093.27

Arnount of exposures to securitisation transactions other
thasa MRR

a. Off balance sheet exposure

I, Expofure Lo own secufitisations

First Loss

Others

I, Exposure to third party securitisations

First Loas

Others

b.  Onbalance sheet exposure

L Exposure to own Securitisations

First Loss

Oithers

il Exposure to third party securitisations

First Loss

Crthers

Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and
gain/loss on sale on account of securitisation

83,839.36

48.635.90

Form and quantum {outstanding value) of services
& provided by way of, liquidity support, past-securitisation
assat servicing, ete.

62776094

26,939.96

Perfarmance of facility provided., Please provide
separately for each facility viz. Credit enhancement,
liquidity support, servicing agent etz. Mention percent in
7 bracket as of total velue of facility provided.

{a] Amount paid

ib} Repayment received

{c] Outstanding amount

5,607.63

3,243.84

Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past,
B Please provide breakup separately for each asset class Le,
RMBS, Vehicle Loans etc

2.18%

Amount and number of additional/top up loan given on
3 same underlying asset. Please provide breakup separately
for each asset class i.e. RMBS, Viehicle Loans etc

N.A.

M.A.

Investor complaints {a) Directhy/Indirectly received and;

» {b) Complaints outstanding

Ll

[ M.

N.A

(*The above figures are based on the information duly certified by the SPV's auditers).
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b. During the year, the Company has transferred loans through securitisation. The information an securitisation

activity of the Company ai an originator Is glven belaw:

o i

Total umhurlnans suuﬁtﬂed d

T L, —

‘ms
Total book value of the loans securitised 7% 718.60 19,664.75
ﬁ::rt valug of the loans securitised including loans placed as 72.718.60 19,664.75
sale consideration received for the loan asset securitised 66,220.81 17,615.03
Uvercollateralization of the loans securitised 6.,497.79 2,045.72
Excess interest spread recognised in the statement of profit and loss 2, 180.86 203.94

= — — —
E % e el
mama aif o =

e —— s H

Cash Collateral 3,006.95 1,153.93
Corporate Guarantis 4,629.80
Loan assets retained as MRE 498 27 2,045 73

D. Disclosure for direct assignment

Details of assignment transsctions undertaken b . 3

| Ageregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 14,423.88 1,775.91
| AgEregate consideration 14,423.88 1,775.91
Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferned in
earller years T )

| Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

E. Details of non-performing financial assets sold

F.

B day to 14 days 1.B46.77 - 1,010.25
15 days to 1 month 2,634.49 - B.4%4.40
Over 1 month to 2 months 7,058.07 = 15,660,599
Cheer 2 months te 3 manths 7,102 .95 - 8,796.41
Over 3 months 6 B menths 21,164.86 = 30,512.26
Cheer B months to 1 year 30,769.49 - 52,773.30
Owver 1 year to 3 years 1,07,818.67 - 41,501.88 |
Cver 3 years to 5 years 142.41 . 11,750.75
Crver byears 7.836.50 - 6,662.00
Total 2,01,177.79 - 17967028

"Faor any ALM mismatches, the Company hold adeguate liquid assets and sanction linas.
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0 day to 7 days - 2,231.321
8 day to 14 days 1,666.03 - 89111
| 15 days to 1 manth 3.779.51 - 431578
Cwver 1 month to 2 months 5,265.11 - 5,516.31
Over 2 months to 3 months 6, 749.26 - 9,609.46

Ower 3 months to 6 months 22,386.84 5 19,919.16 |
Over 6 months to 1 year 46,020.41 - 51,818.10
Cheer 1 year to 3 years 1,12,690.75 . 5817205
Over 3 years to 5 years 1.617.03 . 10,599.15
iOver 5 years 5.192.18 - -
Total 2,10,045.78 5 1,63,172.22

G. Exposures

{a) Exposure to capital market

The Company has no exposure to the capital markets directly or indirectly In the current and previous vear.

(b) Exposure to Real Estate Sector
The Company has ne expasure to the real estate sector directly or indirectly in the eurrent and pravious year.

H. Registration with other financial sector regulator
The Company has obtained registration as a Corporate Agent (Composite) in February 2018 with Insurance
Regulatory and Department Authority of Indla (IRDAI). The Registration no. Is CADG41 and is valid till 27 February

2025.

I.  No penalties imposed on the Company by the Reserve Bank of India or any other regulator during the year
ended 31 March 2022 {31 March 2021; NIL).

1. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencles and migration of ratings during the year
The overall rating of the Company by India Ratings & research and CRISIL is BBB+/A2 positive. Further, the
Company has obtained rating from ICRA Limited, India Ratings & research and CRISIL in respect of Term
loans, Non-Convertible Debentures and Commercial Paper. The ratings obtained for the said transactions

are provided below,

Line of i IVR A/ Stable f IVR A2+ (Shart Term i
Creditf Bank 12-jul-21 infomerics Rating) 11-Jul-22
lines 29-lun-21 ICRA [ICRA|BBE+Stablel/TICRA]AZ reaffirmed 2B-lun-22
29-Jun-21 ICRA [ICRA|BBE+{Stable): reaffirmed 28-Jun-22

M- 8t India Ratings and | IND PP-MLD BBB+emr/Positive £ IND A2 8Ot
Convertible : o Retearch [Commercial Paper) 2 2

Debenturesy o India Ratings and | IND PP-MLD BBE&+emrStable / IND AZ L6-D

Cr W s Risearch [Commerclal Paper) i
23-Mow-21 CRISIL LTD CRISIL PPMLD BBE+ r fStable [Reaffirmed] 22-Mow-22
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nfnmu’r-u.

rati IVR &-/Stable/TVR A2+[Short Term rating} 09-Jun-£1
Credit/ Bank M=
e 30-jul-20 | ICRA [ICRA]BBB+(Stable)/ [ICRAJAZ assigned 29-Jul-21
31-Aug-20 | ICRA [ICRA]BBE+(Stable)/ [ICRALAZ assigned 20-Aug-21
Infonseries
13-Jun-20 rath VR A-Stable 12-Jun-21
Non- Al-Aug-20 | ICRA [ICRA]BBE+{Stable) 30-Aug-21
o 20-Jul-20 | ICRA [ICRAJBBE+[Stable] 20-Jul-21
India Ratings
Debentures) | 02-Mar-21 nd R I IND PP-MLD BEB+emr/Positive Qi-Mar-22
= larrl:lll Rati IND PP-MLD BBB-+ems/Positive, IND A2
ngs - . IND
oD and Research [Commercial Paper) -5ep-21
23-Now-20 | CRISILLTD CRISIL PP-MLD BEB+r 22-Now-21

K. Break up of impairment on financial Instruments at amortised cost” shown under the head Expenditure In
the statement of profit and loss

(6,591.63) 8,174.37
Other financial assets 310.46 648.27
Write offs - other than restructured portfolio 14,670.23 ¥.698. 72
Write affs - restructured portfollo 33.082.14 246.16

L. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

. Concentration of Advances
E Partculan 3] ) TF 31 March 2 021
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers E1B.28 TE7.BO
Percentage of Advances to twenty langest borrowers to Tatal L o
Advances of the applicable NBFC

il, Concentration of Exposures

| e A

Total Expasure to twenty langest borrowers
Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers to Total D% O.36%
Advances of the applicable NBFC )

ili. Concentration of NFAS
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Agriculture & allid activities

MSME*

Corporate borrowers

Services

Unsecured personal loans

Auto loans

el L B L8 L -_. _

Oiher persanal loans

B Other retail loans

a

*Ministry of Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises vide its notification dated 01 June 2020 announced
the criterla for classification of micra, small and medium enterprises basis which the Company has
classified its customiers into micra, small and medivm enterprise in accordance with MSMED Act,

N, Movement of NPAS*

——

[ Net NPAs to net advances (%) 1.63% 0.90%
] Movernent of NPAs (Gross)
il Opening balance 5,192.18 4,793.37 |
i} Additions during the year B0,367.30 8,743.98
iii} Reductions during the year 5T.72.99 9,345.17
v} Closing Salance 7.836.4% 5.192.18
T Movement of net NPAs
il Opening balance 1,865.75 2,103.79
i} Additions during the year 23,333.93 3,493.15
iii} Reductions du the year 21.985.70 3,731.19
iv] Cloging balance 3,004.04 1,865.75
" Movemant of provisions for NPAs (excluding
provision on standsrd sstete)
i) Opening balance 3,326.43 2,680.58
i} Provisipns made during the year 37,033.31 6,250.83
iil] Wrive-off"\Write-back 35.727.29 5.613.98
W] Closing balance 4,632.45 3132643

* represents stage-3 loans

arch 2021
J LA &A1

Standard assets (Stage-1 and Stage-2) 1,93,341.30 2,04,853.60
Non-performing assets (Stage-3) 7,836.49 5.192.18
Loss asseks - -
Less: Provision

Standard assets (Stage-1 and Stage-2) 4,952.44 12.850.10
Hun-plrfmmln!. assets IS'r.aEe-al 4 632.45 332643
Loss assets = =
Loan outstanding (net)

Standard assets (Stage-1 and Stage-2) 1,B8,388.86 1,92,003.50
Mon-performing assets (Stage-3) 3,204.04 1.BB5.75
Lass assets - -
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P. l:mmrmrl:nmpﬂnu

I Hunfmmplahupqndingﬂth:ugmuniﬁm-fw i 5 i ) 1

li No. of complaints received during the year 107 136 |
lii Mo. of complaints redressed during the year 107 137
v | No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - -

Q. Asrequired by the RBI circular no DNBS.PD.CC. No, 256 /03.10.042 / 2011-12 dated 02 March 2012 the details
of frauds noticed / reported are as below:

Amuunt hwuh!r.'l 7146 51.85
Armaunt recoversd 27.20 3.17
Armaunt writtén off [ provided 344,26 48 &B
Balance -

G2, Liquidity Risk Disclosures

(118

Funding Concentration based on significant -:wnurpwtg l,lm'rh deposits and barrowkngs)

MNumbser n-f:.lgnlﬂﬂnt tnuntg:rp.uﬂﬁ 2
Amount 1,50,224.50
Percenqeuffunﬂng concentration to total deposits MLA
Percentage of funding concentration te total llabilithes T3 81%

* Significant counterparty Is as defined In RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.MNBFC (PD
CC Mo .102/03.10.001 /2019-20 dated 4 November 2019 on Liquidity Risk Managemsent
Framework for Mon- Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies.

Top 20 large deposits - Not applicable

_— e ———
i e

_— Stota Ty . = :
Percentage of amount of top 10 borrowings to total borrowings

Funding Concentration based on ﬂpiﬂnnthu‘hmunﬂ;rnduﬂ'

Debt Securities 67.246.70 33.04%

Term loans and WCDL =2,327.40 25.71%
Securitisation liabilities SII??EI.-I-E 25.93%
cc/fop 4,787.19 2.35%
Sub-debt 2.529.50 1.24%

*® Significant counterparty is as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.MBFC (PD)
CC.Mo.102/03.10.001,/3019-20 dated 4 November 2019 on Liguidity Risk Management
Framework, as a single counterparty oF group of eonnected or affilisted counterparties
accounting In aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total Habdlities
and 10% for other non-deposit taking MBFCs e
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V. stock ratio:

1 Commercial papers a3 a % of total liabilities

2 Commercial papers as @ % of total assets 0.61%

3 Mon-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one HA
year) as a % of total labilities

4 Mon-convertible debentures {original maturity of less than one N.A
year] as a % of total assets

5 DOther short-term liabilities a2 a % of total Fabilities B4.49%

B Other short-term liabilities as a % of total assets 49.80%

VI.  Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management
Refer Note-55(A) of financial statements

63. Comparison between provisions required under IRACP and Impalrment allowances made under Ind A% 109:

Standard Staga 1 183,208,583 3.880.92 1,75,327.51 73284 3,148.08
Stage 2 10,132.46 1,071.52 9,060.94 360.43 71109
Subtotal 1,93,341.29 4,952.44 | 1.88,388.85 @ 1,093.27 3,859.17
Mon-performing Assets
|{NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 7.398.97 4,194 .92 320405 | 369948 43544
Doubtful - up to 1 year
1to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 Years Stage 3 437.53 437,53 - 437.53 -
Subtotal of Dowbtiul Stage 3 437.53 437.53 - 437.53 -
Loss Stage 3 e . = R a
Subtotal of NPA 7,836.50 4,632.45 3,204.05 | 4,137.01 495.44
Other items such a3 Stage 1 = :
guarantees, lpan Stage 2 = T - _ "
cammibmants, etc. = = -
which are in the scope
of Ind AS 109 but not
covered under current
Income Recognition, Taged
Ascet Classification and
Provisioning [IRACP]
FIOEMmS
Subtotal - . % - -
1,83, 206,83 388092 | 1,79,327.91 T32.B4 3,148.08
10,132,486 1,071.52 0,060.54 36043 171109
7,836.50 4,632.45 3,204.05 | 413701 | . 495.44
2,01,177.79 958489 | 19159290 | 523028 .. J5l
(LS | T
{ A=l



Lendingkart Finanee Limited
Motes forming part of financial staternents for the yvear ended 31 March 20232
(¥ in Lakhe wiless odlerwie siated)

64. The Company has reclassified regrouped previous year flgures to conform to current year's classification, whare
applicable. Further, the figures for the previous year were audited by the erstwhile statutory auditors.

For Batlibol & Purchit For and on behall of the Board of Directors of Lendingkart
Chartersd Accountants Finance Limited
Firm Registration No. 101048W E."""I : .
9\4 Thoi sl (57
lirﬂk Mehta Hafshy &R 7 . }
Chalrman and Managing Director { L‘I@
Mll‘rlbel‘ship Mo, 116976 DN Mo, 01189114 '\ ey
w ¥ o ; r'-,_'..
Place: Mumbal W S i
Date: 11 May 2022 . % - -
\ Sudeep Bhatla Umesh Navani
i Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 098112 Membership No. A40899
Flace: Ahmedabad

Drate: 11 May 2022



